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Introduction: 

On November 6, 2014, the agency issued $1,098,850 ,000 aggregate initial principal amount of Senior 
Lien Toll Road Refunding Revenu e Bonds Series 2014A, and $293 ,910,000 aggregate initial principa l 
amount of Junior Lien Toll Road Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 20148 , together (the "2014 Bonds"). 
The 2014 Bonds were issued pursuant to the First Amended and Restated Master Indenture of Trust , dated 
as of November 1, 20 14, between the Agency and the Tru stee, as supplemented by the Third and Fourth 
Supplemental Indentures of Trust , dated as of November l , 2014, between the Agency and the Tru stee 
(such Master Indenture of Trust , as so supplemented, the "2014 Master Indenture'). 

The 2014 Bonds were issued by the Agency for the purpose of providing funds , to refund the 1993 Bonds 
and a portion of the Series l997 A Bonds , as more fully described in the Official Statement for the 2014 
Bonds dated October 22, 2014 (the '2014 Official Statement') . 

Pursuant to Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) of the Securities and Exchange Commi ss ion , the Agency has executed a 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate , dated as of November 1, 20 14 for the bonds under the 2014 Master 
Indenture , (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate"). The Continuing Disclosure Certificate states that the 
Agency shall provide not later than January 15 of each year to each Reposit ory (as defined in the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate) a Disc losure Report relatin g to the immediately preceding fiscal year. 
The Disclosure Rep01t is to contain certain data related to the Agency , the Toll Road and the bonds 
under the 2014 Ma s ter Ind e nture . 

The information contained in this repo1t constitutes all disclosure required pursuant to the Continuing 
Disc losure Certificate. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings 
assigned to such terms in the Official Statement. 

Disclosure Information: 

Section 4.1 The audited financial statements of the Agency for the prior Fiscal Year, prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental 
entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

See audited financial statement s for the fisca l yea r ended June 30, 2015 attached. 



Section 4.2 Principal amount of Bonds of each Series outstanding unde r the 2014 Master 
Indenture. 

On November 6, 20 l 4, the Agency issued $1,392 ,760,000 aggr ega te initial principal amount of the 20 I 4 
Bonds and used the proceeds to refund the 1993 Bonds and a portion of the l99 7A Bonds . As of June 30, 
2015, the bonds consist of the following: $1,098,850,000 principal amount of Series 20 14A Senior Lien Toll 
Road Refunding Revenu e Bonds, $293,910 ,000 principal amount of the Series 2014B Junior Lien Toll Road 
Refunding Revenue Bonds , $538,574 ,238 accreted value of The 1997 A Convertible Capital Appreciation 
Bonds, and $ I 83,318, I I 8 of the accreted value of the 1997 A Capital Appreciation Bonds. Additional 
information can be found in the Agency 's Audited Financial Statements. 

Section 4.3 A statement of the Senior Lien Bonds Reserve Fund Requi reme nt, the balance 
in the Senior Lien Bonds Reserve F und and the amount of the Senior Lien Bo nds Reserve 
Fund Requirement (if any) that is funded with a letter of credit, surety bond, or insurance 
policy , as provided by the 2014 Master Indenture; and a statement of the Junior Lien Bonds 
Reserve Fund Requirement, the balance in the Junior Li en Bonds Reserve Fund and the 
amount of the Junior Lien Bonds Reserve Fund Requirement (if any) that is funded with a 
letter of credit, surety bond, or insurance policy, as provided by the 2014 Master Indenture. 

The Senior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement under the 2014 Indentur es is $151 ,855 ,625. 

The total amount available to meet the Senior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement on June 3 0, 2015 was 
$151 ,907,122 in cash and investments. 

The Junior Lien Reserve Fund Req uirement under the 20 I 4 Lndentures is $27,393 ,548. 

The total amount available to meet the Junior Lien Reserve Fund Requirement on June 30, 20 15 was 
$27 ,393,548 in cash and investment s . 

Section 4.4 - A statement of the Use and Occupancy Fund Requirement unde r the 2014 Master 
Indentures, the balance of the Use and Occupancy Fund, the amount of the Use and Occupancy 
Fund Requirement (if any) that is funded with an insurance policy as provided by the 2014 Master 
Indenture, and, if applicable, a brief description of such i.nsurance policy (including self-insurance 
retention requirement applicable to such insurance policy) 

The Use and Occupancy Fund Requirement under the 2014 Indentur es is $15 ,000 ,000. As of June 30, 2015 
the fund consisted of $15,219 ,03 I in cas h and investment s. As the cash and investmen ts he ld in the Use 
and Occupancy Fund sat isfy the full requirement , no insurance policy is held for this purpose. 



Section 4.5 - Updated Fiscal Year information for the table entitled "HISTORICAL FISCAL 
YEAR TRAFFIC AND GROSS TRANSACTIONAL TOLL REVENUES" in the section of the 
Offic ial Statement entitled "HISTORICAL PERFORMANCE AND 2011 RESTRUCTURING." 

Fiscal Year ending 
June 30 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 

Annual Transactions 25,451, 120 25,424,605 24,984,196 26.459,758 27,965,8 62 

Growth Over 
Previous Year 0.6% -0. 1% -1.7% 5.9% 5.7% 

Average Toll Rate $ 3.46 $ 3 .66 $ 4.02 $ 4.43 $ 4.70 

Growth Over 
Previous Year 0.6% 5.6% 10.0% 10.0% 63% 

Annual Gross 
Transactional Toll 

Revenues $ 88, I 03,663 $ 92,972,084 $100,528,366 $ 117,138,365 $ 131,560,706 

Growth Over 
Previous Year 1.2% 5.5% 8.1% 16.5% 12.3% 

Section 4.6 - Updated Fiscal Year information for the table entitled "HISTORICAL FISCAL 
YEAR GROSS TRANSACTIONAL TOLL REVENUES AND NET COLLECTIBLE TOLLS " 
in the section of the Official Statement entitled "THE TOLL ROAD - Net Collectible Tolls." 

Fiscal Vear ending June 30 20 11 2012 20 13 2014 2015 

Gross Transactional Toll Revenue $ 88,103,663 $ 92 ,972,084 $ 100,528,366 $ I l 7, 138,365 $ 13 1,560,706 

Less Unprocessable Images $ ( 1, 181,622) $ ( 1,230 ,246) $ (1,4 19,743) $ (2,099,383) $ (3,327,057) 

Less Pursuable Violations $ (1,328,370) $ ( 1,437,975) $ (1,66 1,129) $ (3,941, 182) $ ( 11,567,873) 

Toll Revenue from Violations • $ $ $ $ $ 8,385.5 l8 

Less Non-Revenue Transactions $ (236,435 ) $ (3 10,570) $ ( 139 439) $ (397,334) $ (609 252) 

Net Collectible Tolls $ 85,357 236 $ 89,993,293 $ 97 308 055 $ 110 700 466 $ 124 442 043 

% of Gross Transactional Toll Revenue 96.9% 96.8% 96.8% 94.5% 94.6% 
• As a result of the conversion to All Electronic To lling (AET) and the resulting shift in payment patte rns, including some patrons who may have 
previously paid with cash but are now initially identified instead as pursuable violations transactions, included in Net Collectible Toll Revenues are tolls 
identified during the violation process that were appropriately reclassed to Net Collectible Toll Revenues. Tolls collected during the violation process were 
not considered material prior to the implementation of AET and as such were included in Violation Penalty Revenue through FY 14. 

Section 4.7-A Statement of Violation Penalty Revenues accrued for the Fisca l Year. 

Vio lation Pena lty Revenue accrued for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2015 was $19,3 I 7,382. Viol ation Penalty 
Revenue is recognized when earned. As mentioned in Sect ion 4.6 above, for the fiscal yea r ended June 30, 2015 
T oll Revenue from Violations was $8,385,5 18 and is properl y class ified in Net Co llectible To ll Reve nues . 



Section 4.8 -A statement of Account Maintenance Fees accrued for the Fiscal Year, as well as the 
number of accounts and transponders for such Fiscal Year . 

Account Maintenance Fees accrued for the Fisca l Year ending June 30, 20 15 was $3,171,844. The total number 
of accounts was 145,333 and the total number of transponders was 234,947 at June 30, 2015. 

Section 4 .9 - Statistical data summanzmg the use of the A VI collection system on the San 
Joaquin Hills System, including the percentage of toll transactions that are A VI transactions 
and the overall level of accuracy of the toll collection system . 

Fiscal Year ending 
June 30 20 11 2012 20 13 20 14 2015 

A VI Transac tion s 19,989,244 20 ,041,533 20, 123,522 21,423.144 24,656 ,829 

Total Transactions 25,451 ,120 25,424 ,605 24,984 , 196 26,459,758 27,965 ,862 

AV I ¾ 78.5% 78.8% 80.5% 81.0% 88 .2% 

In May 2014, the Transportation Corr idor Agencies replaced its integrated toll co llection and revenue management 
systems ("TCARMS") with the Infinity Digital Lane System (" lnfinity System") . Using common transponders, a 
centra lized computer system and common personnel , the Infinity System utilizes mechanism s for separate usage ­
based revenue collection and cost allocation among the Agency and the Foothill Eastern Transportation Corridor 
Agency. The Infinity System was designed by and is operated and maintained by TransCore , a Tennessee-based 
corporation. 

By contract, the Infinity System is required to achieve an accuracy level of at minimum 99.5% readable plates. 
Fina l system acceptance was comp leted in April 2015. The Infinity System has met the minimum requirements. 

Section 4.10 - A statement of Development Impact Fees accrued for the Fiscal Year. 

Deve lopment Impact Fees accrued for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was $3,482,848 . 



Section 4.11- Updated Fisca l Year information for the table entitled "Current Expenses" 
in the section of the Official Statement entitled "THE TOLL ROAD--Current Expenses." 

2016 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 20lt 2012 2013 2014 201S (Budget ed) 

Toll Operation s 

Toll Co llections $ 1, 187 $ 1,210 $ 1,208 $ 1,199 $ $ 

Toll Syste ms $ 1.486 $ 1,490 $ 1.480 $ 1,487 $ 75 1 $ 1,125 

Toll Customer Service/Co mpliance $ 3,663 $ 3,688 $ 3,856 $ 4,263 $ 5,668 $ 6,093 

Toll Faciliti es ~ _l__________lli_L____lQ2_ .1...__ill $ 243 $ 298 

Total To ll Operations $ 6,664 $ 6,704 $ 6,853 $ 7,264 $ 6,663 $ 7,5 16 

Toll Ope ratin g Administrati on $ 4.596 $ 4,23 1 $ 3,715 $ 4, 110 $ 4,240 $ 5.446 

Tax Arbitrage Rebate* $ $ $ $ $ 1,205 $ 

Toll Equipment (Includes Transponders ) $ 4 10 $ 252 $ 488 $ 720 $ 842 $ 1,037 

Tota l Current Expenses •• $ 11,670 $ 11.187 $ 11,056 $ 12.094 $ 12,949 $ 13,999 

*Due to significant ly favorab le marke t conditions at the time o f the bond refinancmg 111 Novemb er 20 14, the Agency 1s required to make tax arbitrage 
payments to the Internal Revenue service every five years. The $1.2 mill ion represents an estimate o f the tax arb itrage payment. 
** FY 16 Budge t re llec ts variable cos ts assoc iated wit h inc reasing transac tions . 

Sect ion 4.12 - Updated Fiscal Year information for the table entitled "HISTORICAL OPERATING 
REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE" in the section of the Official Statement entitled 
"THE TOLL ROAD--Historical Operating Revenues and Debt Service Coverage." 

See Attachment A 

Section 4.13 - Updated Fiscal Year information for the table entitled "Current Expenses for Toll 
Ope rations" in the section of the Official Statement entitled "THE TOLL ROAD-Management's 
Discussion of FY 2013-14 and FY 2014 - 15 Budget and Performance-Current Ex penses for Toll 
Operations." 

See table in Section 4. 11 



Section 4.14 - Updated Fiscal Year information for the table entitled "Future Capital Project Costs" 
in the section of the Official Statement entitled "THE TOLL ROAD Capital Improvement Program ." 

See attached "F iscal Year 20 l 6 Capital Improvement Plan " presented to Board of Directors on May 15, 2015 

Section 4.15 - Updated actual Fiscal Year information corresponding to the projections in the table in 
the section entitled ''PROJECTED REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE REQ UIREME NTS." 

See Attachment A 

Section 4.16 - A description of any damage to the Toll Road or the toll collection system during 
the past Fiscal Year, which in the determination of the Agency will result in a material reduction 
in Net Toll Revenues. 

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 , no damage occurred to the To ll Road or the toll collection system , 
which, in the determination of the Agency, resulted in the material reduction in Net Toll Revenues. 



None ,o rcpon 

As of Junt JO, 2015, none or the follO\\"ing f'W!ntS haNe o«urrtd with n.-spec1 to the bond.sunder lht' 
1014 Master lnd e.ntun.-: 

I. Principal and interest ~ynu:· ntdellnqu(ncies: 
2. Non-p:ayment rdatt .-d dcfauhs. if m4teriBI: 
3. Unscheduled draws on debt service rcliC~ S rcflctling financial difficuhie!l~ 
-L Unscl,eduled draws oo credit cnhanc.cmcnt.s rcOcc:ting1i111,m:i3I diffieullics-; 

Substinuion of credit or liquidity pcoviderf. or their failure 10 perform~ Adverse ta.X optmon.~. the 
issuance b)' the Internal Revenue Scl'vice of proposed or final dc1cnninnttOOs of 1axability. Notices of 
Prop0sed l~ue ( IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices o,- dctcnn inations ,.,.ith respect to the 
ta:< Sttuus of the 20 14 Bonds. or Othc-r rntlleri31 ~Yl'l'I\.S nffcc--ting the tax sta1u.-.of the 20 14 Bonds; 

5. Modific:uions 10rights of20 14 Bond holders, ifm:ueri:t.l~ 
6, 2014 BQnd calls, if material, a11d 1crlder offers~ Defcas.1.nces; Release, $Ubsthu1ion or sale of prOper1) 

securing rt·paymc111or lhe. 2014 8onds, if material; Rating changes: Oankrnp1cy, inso1vcn-cy, 
rctcivcrsllip. or similar event o( thc Agency. For purposes of lhis cvc n1 the cvcnl is considered to 
occur when any or the following occur: the appointmcnl of a r«eiver , fiscal agent or similar 
officer for the Agency in a proceed ing unde r the U.S. Ounkrnptt.y Code or in My other proceeding 
under state or rc:deral law in which II eouJ1 or go\•tnuncnu1I au1hority has assumed jurisdic1ion over 
substantially all of the tiSsets or business: or the Agency , or if !;uch jurisdictio n has been assumed 
by lca\•ing. 1he esisting go\•cming body and officials or officers in posscsst01, but suhjcct 10 the 
s,1pervision and QfdtTS of u court or gover,rn,c,n3I ou1hority, or the entry oran order conlirming a 
plan of rcorganita1ion , arrangemen t or liquid:uion by n court or g<wcmnie111ol 11u1llori1y h:l\'ing 
suptrv isi<in or ju risdie1ion ovcrs ubsumtially all oCthe as~tS(l(blis incss of 1he oblig3tcd person; 

7. Con.-.ummatioo of a mcrgt:.r. con.solid:uion, or acquisition Involving 1hl.'!AgtOC)' or the s.,lc o( nll or 
5ubs1an1i.illy nll c)f the asscuof the Agency (other than in lhe ordio.,1.rycourse or busini:ss). the cn1ry 
in10 a definitive ag.rccmc-nt to undf.'ttM'.Csuch an :,.eiiooo, the tcnninaticm or n definith ·c nyecmcnl 
relating to nny such ac-tions, other 1hat1 purSu~nt 10 i1sterms, if m~ucrial; 

8. ,\ppoimmcnl or a successor or addj1iont1J Trustee. or 1hc ch:mgc of name of a Trustee, if rni'lttri:tf: and 
Q. Introduction Of passage o f any amendment 10 1bc Act. 

Signa ture 

The i11forma1ion sci forth hefC:in has been furnis.hed by 1he Agency and is believed tO be accum1c and 
reliable. but is nol gunrant(:ed :is 1~ ~uracy and compklcndS . S1atem<:ntsco111:iincd in 1hii Oi.-.clos.ureRep<)rt 
whi-ch involve CSlim:iu::s, fo.re.:aS1s.or ocher math:rs of opiuion. whethCI' or not express.ly so described herein, 
are i111endcd solely as such and arc nOI 10 be cons.trued ilS rcprcserlUUioos of fnet. Funher, expccssion~ of 
opinion oon1ained hert in arc :mbjec110 ch3ngc without notice .ind the dcli\ 'Cry of tbis Oiscl0$ Utc Report will 
noc. under any cireums1an<:e..11. 1 there h~s beet1 oo Qf thc.­Cl'etuc any implic:iliQn 1hn. ch11ngc in 1he ('IO"airs 
Agei~cy. 

Sa n ,Joilquin Hms Tr-,m~portation Corridor Agency 

:~:.h."~ 
Chief !:'ina.nc:ial OOiccr 
fan1,&.vy13, 2016 

https://fan1,&.vy
https://cireums1an<:e..11
https://express.ly
https://ordio.,1.ry


Attachment A 

11 ISTO IHC ,\ I. Ol'l'R ,\ Tl:\ 'G R EVEN I IES .\:\'D 

Revenues 
Net Collectib le Tolls 
Account Maintanance Fees 
Violations Penalty Reven ue 
Othe r Revenue from Toi I Opera tions 

Total Tolls, Fees and Fines 

DEBT SE R VICE CO\'ERAC E 

2011 

$ 85,357,236 
3,091 ,275 
7,592 , I 94 

386,47 1 
$ 96,427,176 

$ 

$ 

Fiscal Years Ended Ju ne 30 
2012 20 13 

89,993,293 $ 97,308.055 
3,059 ,853 J.032 ,572 
9,076 ,763 9,285 ,230 

4 12,856 772 , 157 
102,542,765 $ 110.398 ,014 

$ 

$ 

20 14 

110,700,466 
3,033,834 

14,501,373 
867,456 

129 , 103, 129 

$ 

$ 

2015 

124 ,442,043 
3.171 ,844 

19,3 17,382 
80 1,738 

147,733 ,008 

To tal Interest Income 
To tal Revenues 

$ 6,710.398 
$ 103, 137,574 

$ 
$ 

5,442,428 
107,985.193 

$ 4.996,875 
$ 115,394 ,889 

$ 
$ 

2.l 86.200 
131,289,329 

$ 
$ 

1,096,826 
148,829 ,834 

Total Curre nt Expenses $ (I 1,669,8 47) $ ( 11, 187,348) $ n 1,056 ,2731 $ (12,093 ,947) $ ( 12.949 , 124) 

Adjus ted Net Toll Revenues $ 9 1,467,727 $ 96.797,845 $ 104,338 ,616 $ 119,195,382 $ 135 ,880,710 

To tal DIF Income Applied to Debt Service• $ $ $ - $ - $ 

Enhanced Adjusted Net To ll Reven ues $ 9 1,467,727 $ 96,797.845 $ 104,338 ,616 $ 119, 195,382 $ 135,880,710 

Enhanced Adjusted Net To ll Revenues x (8 / 12) .. .$ $ $ - $ - $ 90,587 , 140 

Annua l Debt Servi ce 
Series 1993 Bonds Debt Service 
Series 1997 A Bonds Debt Service 
To ll Sta bilizatio n Deposi t 
14 Bonds - Senio r Lien Interes t 
14 Bonds - Senior Lien Princi pal 
14 Bonds - Capital Ap preciation Bonds Sinking Fund 
14 Bonds - Convertible Cap ital App rec iat ion Bonds Sinking Fund 

Total Senior Lien Debt Service 

$ 11,009 ,000 
87, 773,268 

(32,900.000) 

-

$ 65,882,268 

$ 

$ 

11,009,000 
79, 123,269 

-
-
-
-
-

90 , 132.269 

$ 

$ 

11,009 ,000 
82,178,269 

-

-
93 , I 87.269 

$ 

$ 

11,009 ,000 
83,758,268 

-
-
-
-
-

94,76"7,268 

$ 

$ 

38,001.896 

38 ,001.896 

14 Bonds - Junior Lien Interest 
14 Bonds - Junio r Lien Pr incipal 
Total Aggregate Debt Service 

$ 

$ 65, 882 ,268 

$ 

$ 

-

90 , 132,269 

$ 

$ 93 ,'187,269 

$ 

$ 

-

94,767.268 

$ 

$ 

10,672 ,607 

48 ,674 ,503 

Coverage Ratio for Aggregate Debt Service 1.39 1.07 I. 12 1.26 1.86 

Coverage Ratio for Senior Lien Debt Service - - - 2.38 

Average Toll Rate C hange 100489 .8% 5.6% I0 .0% 10.0% 6.3% 

Unrest ricted Funds ••• $ 8,672 ,000 s 21,350 ,000 $ 23,583 ,000 $ 24 ,563 ,000 $ 35,660,000 

•As per indenture: equals DIF revenue in excess of $5 million 
• • Partial year calculation as bonds were refinanced with 8 months rema ining in FY-20 I 5 
••• As of June 30. Not pledged to the paymen t of the Bonds. Includes the following funds earma rked to build a maintenance facility for Caltra ns: approxi mately 

$8 Million in 2009 throug h 2015. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Honorable Board of Directors 
San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor 
Agency (the agency), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2015, and the related 
statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the 
related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency as of June 30, 2015, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

          
      

      
 

 

  

         
      

      
           

    
  

            
      

        
         

 

 

 

Emphasis of Matters 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements 

As discussed in the Significant Accounting Policies note to the financial statements, in 2015 the agency 
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent 
to the Measurement Date. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matter 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that management’s discussion and analysis on pages 
3–8 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

October 2, 2015 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(In thousands) 

This discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency 
(the agency) provides an overview of the agency’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 
2014. Please read it in conjunction with the agency’s financial statements and accompanying notes. 

Background 

The agency was formed in 1986 as a joint powers authority by the County of Orange and cities in Orange County, 
California to provide traffic relief to Orange County through the construction and operation of a toll road. The 
agency was created to plan, design, finance, construct, and operate a 15-mile toll road, known as the San Joaquin 
Hills (State Route 73) Toll Road. The agency’s primary focus is the operation of the facility and collection of tolls 
to repay the tax-exempt revenue bonds that were issued to construct the toll road. 

Planning began in the 1970s when local transportation studies identified the need for new highways, including the 
San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor (State Route 73), to serve Orange County’s growing population. In the 
early 1980s, the corridor was envisioned as a free highway funded through state or federal gas-tax revenue, but 
with a shortage of gas-tax revenue to fund transportation improvements and increasing costs of building new roads, 
local officials began to study alternative ways to fund road projects. 

In the mid-1980s, two state laws were passed authorizing the agency to collect tolls and development impact fees 
to fund road construction. With a pledged revenue stream from future tolls and development impact fees, the 
agency issued nonrecourse, toll-revenue bonds to fund road construction, rather than relying on the uncertainty of 
state gas-tax revenue. The agency also reached an agreement with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) to assume ownership, liability, and maintenance of the State Route 73 Toll Road as part of the state 
highway system. This agreement eliminated the need for the agency to seek additional funding sources for road 
maintenance. 

In 1996, the State Route 73 Toll Road opened to traffic, the first publicly operated toll road in Southern California. 
At June 30, 2015 and 2014, averages of approximately 92,000 and 83,000 transactions, respectively, are recorded 
on the State Route 73 Toll Road every weekday, serving as an important, time-saving alternative route to the 
Interstate 405 and Interstate 5 Freeways. 

Financial Highlights 

In November 2014, the agency issued $1,392,760 of Series 2014 Current Interest Toll Road Refunding Revenue 
Bonds (2014 Bonds); the proceeds of the issuance were used to refund the outstanding balances of its 1993 bonds; 
its 1997 current interest bonds; and portions of its 1997 capital appreciation bonds and convertible capital 
appreciation bonds. As a result of this transaction, the ultimate maturity of the agency’s long-term debt obligations 
has been extended from 2042 to 2050. In addition, the transaction is expected to provide greater financial flexibility, 
more latitude in managing future toll rate increases, and increased ability to withstand future economic downturns. 

Tolls, fees, and fines collected in fiscal year 2015 (FY15) totaled $147,733 compared to $129,103 in fiscal year 
2014 (FY14), an increase of 14.4%. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(In thousands) 

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the agency had $295,831 and $370,829, respectively, in restricted cash and 
investments subject to the master indentures of trust for the bonds outstanding at each date. The agency also had 
$35,660 and $23,651, respectively, in unrestricted cash. 

The agency’s net position at June 30, 2015 and 2014 was $(1,899,785) and $(1,773,548), respectively. The negative 
net position results primarily because the agency’s financial statements reflect its long-term debt obligations which 
were used to fund construction of the corridor, but not the related capital assets, since ownership of the corridor 
was transferred to Caltrans upon completion. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The agency’s financial statements include its statement of net position, statement of revenue, expenses, and 
changes in net position, statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements. The financial statements 
present the financial picture of the agency from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis 
of accounting. These statements include the assets and liabilities of the agency as well as certain items labeled as 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources. The current year’s revenue and expenses are taken into account 
regardless of when cash is received or paid. The statement of cash flows provides information about the agency’s 
cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operating, capital and related financing, and 
investing activities during the reporting period. 

The statement of net position and the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position report the 
agency’s net position and related changes. Net position is the difference between the total of recorded assets and 
deferred outflows and the total of liabilities and deferred inflows. The recorded activities include all toll revenue 
and operating expenses related to the operation of the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor, as well as the 
agency’s construction-related activities and related financing costs. Activities are financed by toll revenue, 
development impact fees, fees and fines, and investment income. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(In thousands) 

Financial Analysis 

The following table summarizes the net position of the agency as of June 30, 2015 and 2014: 

Percentage
increase

2015 2014 (decrease)

Assets and deferred outflows:
Current assets $ 111,783   99,031   12.9%
Capital assets, net 6,422   6,464   0.6
Other noncurrent assets 230,428   305,251   (24.5)
Deferred outflows 108,453   —    —

Total assets and deferred outflows 457,086   410,746   11.3

Liabilities and deferred inflows:
Bonds payable 2,191,499   2,148,605   2.0
Note payable to F/ETCA 120,195   —    —
Net pension liability 3,126   —    —
Other liabilities 41,619   35,689   16.6
Deferred inflows 432   —    —

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 2,356,871   2,184,294   7.9
Net position $ (1,899,785)  (1,773,548)  7.1

In connection with the agency’s November 2014 bond refinance transaction, the agency incurred a deferred loss 
for accounting purposes, which has been recorded as a deferred outflow of resources. Further, as more fully 
described in note 6(c) to the accompanying financial statements, the agency’s Board of Directors and the Board of 
Directors of Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency (F/ETCA) approved an agreement that provided for 
termination of the Mitigation Payment and Loan Agreement between the agencies, concurrently with the closing 
of the refinance transaction. The termination agreement also provided for the agency to pay $120,000 to F/ETCA, 
in annual installments beginning January 15, 2025 equal to 50% of the agency’s surplus funds, plus accrued 
interest. 

As more fully described in notes 2 and 8 to the accompanying financial statements, the agency adopted 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68 and recorded its proportionate share of the 
collective net pension liability applicable to the defined benefit pension plan in which its employees participate, as 
well as related deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions. This resulted in an adjustment to the 
agency’s previously reported net position as of June 30, 2014 in order to record its net pension liability as of that 
date, as reflected in the statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(In thousands) 

Following is a summary of the agency’s revenue, expenses, and changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 
2015 and 2014: 

Percentage
increase

2015 2014 (decrease)

Operating revenue:
Tolls, fees, and fines $ 147,733   129,103   14.4%
Development impact fees 3,483   3,807   (8.5)
Other revenue 1   7   (85.7)

Total operating revenue 151,217   132,917   13.8

Operating expenses 13,710   13,859   (1.1)

Operating income 137,507   119,058   15.5

Nonoperating expenses, net (260,424)  (112,171)  132.2

Change in net position (122,917)  6,887   —

Net position at beginning of year (1,773,548)  (1,780,435)  (0.4)
Adjustment for the cumulative effect on prior

years of applying retroactively the new
method for accounting for pensions (3,320)  —    —

Net position at end of year $ (1,899,785)  (1,773,548)  7.1

Revenue for the agency consist primarily of tolls, fees, and fines, which comprised 97.7% of total revenue in FY15 
as compared to 97.1% in FY14. Tolls, fees, and fines increased 14.4% and 16.9%, respectively, over each of the 
two preceding years, primarily due to toll rate increases and increases in toll transactions. Development impact 
fees were $3,483 in FY15 compared to $3,807 in FY14, a decrease of 8.5%. The amount of development impact 
fees received in a given year is related to residential and nonresidential development in Orange County within the 
area of benefit from the San Joaquin Hills Corridor. 

Operating expenses were $13,710 in FY15 compared to $13,859 in FY14, a decrease of 1.1%. Included in operating 
expenses is noncash depreciation expense on fixed assets of $1,687 in FY15, compared to $842 in FY14. The 
increase in depreciation expense is attributable to the completion of the agency’s All Electronic Tolling (AET) 
project in FY15. Excluding depreciation, operating expenses were $12,023 in FY15 and $13,017 in FY14, a 
decrease of $994. 

Net nonoperating expenses for FY15 include investment income of $1,133; interest expense of $123,370; costs 
related to the bond refunding transaction of $16,982; arbitrage rebate costs of $1,205; and the $120,000 cost to 
terminate the Mitigation Payment and Loan Agreement with F/ETCA. For FY14, the agency had investment 
income of $3,275 and interest expense of $115,446. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(In thousands) 

Capital Assets, Net 

The following table summarizes the agency’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation at June 30: 

2015 2014

Construction in progress $ —    —    
Right-of-way acquisitions, grading, or improvement 119   119   
Furniture and equipment 6,303   6,345   

Total capital assets, net $ 6,422   6,464   

Right-of-way acquisitions, grading, or improvements include easements and environmental mitigation parcels. 
Furniture and equipment includes transponders, toll and violations collection equipment, buildings, and changeable 
message signs. 

More detailed information about the agency’s capital assets is presented in note 5 to the financial statements. 

Debt Administration 

The agency had outstanding bonds payable of $2,191,499 and $2,148,605 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
The net increases in 2015 and 2014 were partially attributable to accretion of principal on capital appreciation 
bonds totaling $48,547 and $59,511, respectively. The remainder of the change in each year is attributable to the 
bond refunding transaction in FY15 and principal payments of $36,890 in FY14. 

All of the agency’s toll, fees, fines and development impact fee revenue, less certain expenses, as defined in the 
indentures of trust, is pledged to repay these bonds. The agency has several debt covenants contained in the master 
indentures of trust. Management of the agency represents that the agency was in compliance with all of its 
covenants as of and for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014. 

Economic Factors 

After consideration of the toll rate recommendations from the agency’s traffic consultant and the potential effects 
of traffic diversion, toll rates were approved by the agency’s Board of Directors for implementation effective July 1, 
2015. The new toll rates are projected to result in a 3.1% increase in transactional toll revenue and reflect increases 
of 2% for FasTrak® toll rates and maintenance of the $1.00 increment above the FasTrak® rates for non-FasTrak 
transactions. 

The agency continues to focus on customer incentives and promotions to attract new drivers, reward current 
customers, and increase total transactions and revenue. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2015 and 2014 

(In thousands) 

Contacting the Agency’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the agency’s finances. Questions concerning any 
of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to 
the Controller, San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency, 125 Pacifica, Suite 100, Irvine, CA 92618 or to 
info@thetollroads.com. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Assets: 
Current assets: 

Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
Receivables: 

Accounts, net of allowance of $2,906 
Other 

Due from Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency 
Other assets 

$ 29,114 
71,949 

3,291 
210 

6,444 
775 

Total current assets 111,783 

Noncurrent assets: 
Cash and investments 
Restricted cash and investments 
Capital assets, net 

6,546 
223,882 

6,422 

Total noncurrent assets 236,850 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Unamortized deferral of bond refunding costs 
Pension costs 

108,078 
375 

Total assets and deferred outflows 457,086 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Unearned revenue 
Employee compensated absences payable 
Interest payable 
Current portion of bonds payable 

1,339 
6,623 

182 
32,270 
37,241 

Total current liabilities 77,655 

Net pension liability 
Arbitrage rebate payable 
Long-term bonds payable 
Note payable to Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency 

3,126 
1,205 

2,154,258 
120,195 

Total liabilities 2,356,439 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Pension costs 432 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows 2,356,871 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

(2,197,194) 
262,696 

34,713 

Total net position $ (1,899,785) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Operating revenue: 
Tolls, fees, and fines 
Development impact fees 
Other revenue 

$ 147,733 
3,483 

1 

Total operating revenue 151,217 

Operating expenses: 
Toll compliance and customer service 
Salaries and wages 
Toll systems 
Depreciation 
Professional services 
Insurance 
Facilities rent 
Toll facilities 
Marketing 
Other operating expenses 

5,668 
2,652 

751 
1,687 

547 
707 
386 
243 
694 
375 

Total operating expenses 13,710 

Operating income 137,507 

Nonoperating revenue (expenses): 
Investment income 
Costs of bond refunding 
Arbitrage rebate 
Termination of Mitigation Payment and Loan Agreement 
Interest expense 

1,133 
(16,982) 

(1,205) 
(120,000) 
(123,370) 

Nonoperating expenses, net (260,424) 

Change in net position (122,917) 

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 
Adjustment for the cumulative effect on prior years of change 

in accounting principles for pensions 

(1,773,548) 

(3,320) 

Net position at beginning of year, as adjusted (1,776,868) 

Net position at end of year $ (1,899,785) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash received from toll road patrons 
Cash received from development impact fees 
Cash received from other revenue 

$ 145,464 
3,438 

1 
Cash payments to suppliers 
Cash payments to employees 

(9,218) 
(2,795) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 136,890 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Cash payments for acquisition of capital assets 
Cash payments for interest and principal 
Cash paid in connection with bond refunding transaction 

(2,637) 
(42,423) 

(157,645) 

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (202,705) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Cash receipts for interest and dividends 
Cash receipts from the maturity and sale of investments 
Cash payments for purchase of investments 

3,993 
447,087 

(332,532) 

Net cash provided by investing activities 118,548 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 52,733 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 52,720 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (note 4) $ 105,453 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Fees receivable 
Due from Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency 
Other assets 
Accounts payable 
Unearned revenue 

$ 137,507 

1,687 

(1,221) 
(45) 

(1,342) 
(3) 

157 
294 

Net pension liability and related accounts 
Employee compensated absences payable 

(137) 
(7) 

Total adjustments (617) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 136,890 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Year ended June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Noncash capital and related financing and investing activities: 
Bond refunding, including the following elements: 

Face amounts of new bonds issued $ 1,392,760 
Bond premium 78,347 
Transaction costs charged to expense (16,982) 
Escrow deposits to repay principal and accrued interest on refunded bonds (1,499,944) 
Bond refunding costs recorded as deferred outflows of resources (111,826) 
Note payable to Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency 120,000 

Amortization of bond premium recorded as reduction of interest expense 1,500 
Amortization of deferred bond refunding costs (3,748) 
Interest expense recorded for accretion of bonds and note payable (48,547) 
Change in unrealized gain/loss on investments 281 
Amortization of discount/premium on investments (1,473) 
Arbitrage rebate 1,205 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

12 



 

 

 

 

  

  

      
    

       
           

         
    

     
    

        
    

          
         

        
      

  

  
     

  

  

             
         

   
             
 

  
         

      
          

  

  

      
       

    
      

SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(1) Reporting Entity 

In recognition of the regional transportation needs in the County of Orange (County), the California State 
Legislature enacted various amendments to the California Government Code to authorize the financing of 
bridges and major thoroughfares by joint powers agencies. Pursuant to such authorization, the San Joaquin 
Hills Transportation Corridor Agency (the agency) was created in May 1986 by a joint exercise of powers 
agreement. Current members are the County and the cities of Aliso Viejo, Costa Mesa, Dana Point, Irvine, 
Laguna Hills, Laguna Niguel, Laguna Woods, Mission Viejo, Newport Beach, San Clemente, San Juan 
Capistrano, and Santa Ana (collectively, the member agencies). The purpose of the agency is to plan, design, 
construct, finance, administer funds for, and operate the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor. The 
agency is governed by a Board of Directors comprising representatives from the member agencies. The 
agency has the power to, among other things, incur debt and establish and collect tolls. 

The financial statements comprise the activities of the agency. There are no other organizations for which 
the agency is financially accountable or for which it is fiscally responsible. The agency and the 
Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency (F/ETCA) are under common management and together 
are called the Transportation Corridor Agencies. However, each agency has an independent governing board. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting policies of the agency are in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
(U.S. GAAP) applicable to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting principles. 

(a) Basis of Presentation 

The agency records revenue in part from fees and other charges for services to external users and, 
accordingly, has chosen to present its financial statements using the reporting model for 
special-purpose governments engaged in business-type activities. This model allows all financial 
information for the agency to be reported in a single column in each of the accompanying financial 
statements. 

The agency distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items in the preparation 
of its financial statements. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from the collection of tolls, 
fees, and fines on the corridor. The agency’s operating expenses include depreciation, materials, 
services, and other expenses related to the operation of the corridor. All revenue and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. 

(b) Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized 
when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the 
agency implemented GASB Statements No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities; 
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27; 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

and No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date – An 
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. 

Restricted resources are used in accordance with the agency’s master indentures of trust. Unrestricted 
resources are used at the agency’s discretion. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are 
available for use, it is the agency’s policy to determine on a case-by-case basis when to use restricted 
or unrestricted resources. 

(c) Budget 

Fiscal year budgets are prepared by the agency’s staff for estimated revenue and expenses. The Board 
of Directors adopts the annual budget at the June board meeting for the fiscal year commencing the 
following July. The approval of the budget requires the consent of at least two-thirds of the board 
members. No expenditures in excess of the total budget for each board-designated category are made 
without the approval of at least two-thirds of the board members, at which time a revised and amended 
budget is required to be submitted to the Board of Directors. All budgets are adopted on a basis 
consistent with U.S. GAAP. All budget appropriations lapse at year-end. Any budgeted expenses not 
incurred by each year-end must be reappropriated in the next fiscal year. 

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents generally consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. 

(e) Investments 

Investments are stated at fair value, generally based on quoted market prices. 

The agency classifies investments as current or noncurrent based on how readily the investment is 
expected to be converted to cash and whether any restrictions limit the agency’s ability to use the 
resources. 

(f) Receivables 

Receivables include amounts due from member agencies for development impact fees collected on 
behalf of the agency, credit card receivables, interoperable receivables due from other California toll 
agencies, receivables from patrons for violations and tolls, and interest. 

(g) Capital Assets 

Capital assets include construction in progress, environmental mitigation sites, easements, the corridor 
operations facility, transponders, toll and violations collection equipment, buildings, changeable 
message signs, vehicles, and furniture. Capital assets are defined by the agency as assets with an initial 
individual cost of more than five thousand dollars, with the exception of transponders that are valued 
in total, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

As described further in note 5, the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor and the related purchases 
of rights of way, for which title vests with the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), are 
not included as capital assets because the agency does not have title to these assets. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs and mitigation that do not add value to the assets or materially extend asset 
lives are not capitalized. 

Capital assets are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Asset type Useful life

Buildings 20–30 years
Changeable message signs 15 years
Toll revenue equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Leasehold improvements, other

equipment, and furniture 5–10 years

Assets determined to be impaired are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable value. 

(h) Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue represents prepaid tolls collected from patrons, including those using FasTrak®, an 
electronic toll collection system. 

(i) Unamortized Deferral of Bond Refunding Costs 

Deferred bond refunding costs represent certain costs related to the issuance of the 2014 Bonds. These 
costs have been recorded as deferred outflows of resources, and are being amortized over the remaining 
period during which the refunded bonds were scheduled to be repaid, as more fully detailed in note 6. 

(j) Pension Plan 

Qualified permanent employees of the agency participate in a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Orange County Employees Retirement System (OCERS). 
For purposes of measuring the agency’s net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the plan and 
additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis 
as they are reported by OCERS. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized when they are due 
and payable in accordance with plan terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

(k) Revenue Recognition 

Toll revenue is recognized at the time the vehicle passes through the toll plaza. Other revenue is 
recognized when earned. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(l) Allocation of Common Costs 

Expenses directly related entirely to the agency are charged to the agency, and those incurred on behalf 
of both the agency and F/ETCA are allocated between the two agencies based on the estimated benefit 
to each. In addition, the agency has amounts due from F/ETCA related to F/ETCA customers who 
incur tolls on the agency’s corridor and has amounts due to F/ETCA related to the agency’s customers 
who incur tolls on State Routes 241, 261, and 133 and other expenses. At June 30, 2015, the agency 
had net receivables due from F/ETCA of $6,444. 

(m) Net Position 

The agency’s net position is classified within the following categories: 

Net investment in capital assets: Represents the agency’s capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation and the outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
and improvement of those assets. 

Restricted: Represents the agency’s assets subject to externally imposed conditions, related primarily 
to restricted bond proceeds and certain revenue collected, net of related liabilities. 

Unrestricted: Represents the remainder of the agency’s net position not included in the categories 
above. 

(n) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities and 
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(3) Development Impact Fees 

The sources of development impact fees for the year ended June 30, 2015 were as follows: 

City of Irvine $ 1,328   
City of San Clemente 1,259   
City of Laguna Hills 375   
City of Laguna Niguel 219   
City of Aliso Viejo 198   
City of Dana Point 153   
City of Newport Beach 125   
County of Orange 115   
City of Costa Mesa 81   
City of San Juan Capistrano – net refund (370)  

$ 3,483   

(4) Cash and Investments 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows: 

Current cash and investments $ 29,114   
Noncurrent cash and investments 6,546   
Current restricted cash and investments 71,949   
Noncurrent restricted cash and investments 223,882   

$ 331,491   
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 consist of the following: 

Cash and
cash

equivalents Investments Total

Cash on hand $ 1   —    1   
Deposit accounts 3,727   —    3,727   
Money market funds 16,228   —    16,228   
Commercial paper —    8,761   8,761   
U.S. Treasury securities —    5,449   5,449   
Federal agency securities —    15,840   15,840   
State and local bonds —    4,770   4,770   
Investments held with trustee per debt

agreements:
Commercial paper —    599   599   
U.S. Treasury securities —    165,821   165,821   
Federal agency securities 85,497   15,716   101,213   
State and local bonds —    9,082   9,082   

Total $ 105,453   226,038   331,491   

(a) Cash Deposits 

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Cash Deposits 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of failure of a depository financial 
institution, the agency will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in possession of an outside party. 

At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the agency’s deposits was $3,727, and the corresponding 
aggregate bank balance was $4,792. The difference of $1,065 was principally due to outstanding 
checks and deposits in transit. The agency’s custodial credit risk is mitigated in that the full amounts 
of the bank balances outlined above were insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized in 
accordance with Section 53652 of the California Government Code with securities held by the 
pledging financial institution in the agency’s name. 

(b) Investments 

Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an investment in a single 
issuer. The agency mitigates these risks by holding a diversified portfolio of high-quality investments. 
The agency’s investment policy sets specific parameters by type of investment for credit quality, 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

maximum maturity, and maximum percentage investment. Both the policy and the agency’s debt 
agreements generally require that all securities must be issued by companies with a long-term debt 
rating of at least “A” by two of the Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSRO) 
or at least “AA” by one NRSRO. The policy also indicates specific rating requirements for certain 
types of investments. Further, there are percentage limitations on the purchase of specific types of 
securities, based on the purchase price of the security as compared to the market value of the total 
portfolio at the time of purchase. However, the policy does not require sales of individual securities 
due to subsequent changes in market value that cause their values to exceed the prescribed maximum 
percentages of the portfolio. 

The table below identifies the types of investments that are authorized by the agency’s investment 
policy and certain provisions of the agency’s policy that address interest rate risk and concentration of 
credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee, which 
are governed by the provisions of the agency’s debt agreements rather than by the agency’s investment 
policy. 

Maximum
Maximum percentage Specific

Authorized investment Maximum percentage investment rating
type maturity of portfolio* in one issuer requirement

U.S. Treasury bills, notes, 5 years 100  100  N/A
and bonds

Federal agency and U.S. 5 years 100  35  N/A
government-sponsored
enterprise notes and bonds

Federal agency 5 years 20  15  2nd highest
mortgage-backed securities ratings category

by an NRSRO

Certificates of deposit ** 5 years 100  5  Long-term debt
rating in one of
highest ratings
categories by
two NRSROs

Certificates of deposit 5 years 30  5  Long-term debt
account registry service rating in one of

highest ratings
categories by
two NRSROs
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Maximum
Maximum percentage Specific

Authorized investment Maximum percentage investment rating
type maturity of portfolio* in one issuer requirement

Negotiable certificates of 5 years 30  5  Long-term debt
deposit rating in one of

highest ratings
categories by
two NRSROs

Banker’s acceptances 180 days 30  5  Drawn on and
accepted by a
bank that carries
the highest
short-term ratings
category by one
NRSRO

Commercial paper 270 days 25  Lesser of 5% of Highest short-term
portfolio or 10% rating by an
of outstanding NRSRO
paper of issuer

Repurchase agreements 90 days 25  5  N/A

Medium-term maturity 5 years 30  5  Long-term debt
corporate notes rating in one of

highest ratings
categories by
two NRSROs

State of California Local N/A Lesser of 5  N/A
Agency Investment Fund $50 million

or 15% of
portfolio

County or local agency N/A 15  5  N/A
investment pools

Shares in a California N/A 20  5  Highest rating
common law trust category by an

NRSRO

Asset-backed securities 5 years 20  5  Highest rating by
one NRSRO; issuer   
must also have one
of the three highest
ratings from two
NRSROs
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Maximum
Maximum percentage Specific

Authorized investment Maximum percentage investment rating
type maturity of portfolio* in one issuer requirement

Money market mutual funds N/A 20  5  Highest applicable
rating by two
NRSROs

Bonds or notes issued by 5 years 30  5  One of the three
the State of California, any highest rating
local agency in the state, categories by at
or any other state least two NRSROs

* Excluding amounts held by trustee, which are subject to provisions of the bond indentures.

** The full amounts of principal and accrued interest must be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) or the National Credit Union Administration (NCUA).

The investment of debt proceeds and toll revenue held by the agency’s bond trustee is governed by 
provisions of the debt agreements, rather than by the general provisions of the California Government 
Code or the agency’s investment policy. The following table identifies the investment types that are 
authorized for these funds, and if applicable, the specific rating requirements. 

Investments authorized by debt
agreements Specific rating requirement

U.S. government obligations N/A

U.S. federal agency debt instruments N/A

State and local government debt securities One of the two highest rating categories by
Moody’s and S&P, and if rated by Fitch, in
one of the two highest rating categories

Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, N/A
deposit accounts, or money market
deposits insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)

Certificates of deposit collateralized by N/A
U.S. government or federal agency
obligations

Federal funds or bankers’ acceptances Prime-1 or A3 or better by Moody’s, A-1 or A
or better by S&P and, if rated by Fitch, F-1 or
A or better
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Investments authorized by debt
agreements Specific rating requirement

Commercial paper Prime-1 or better by Moody’s and A-1 or better
by S&P and, if rated by Fitch, F-1 or better

Repurchase agreements with terms up to A or better by both Moody’s and S&P and, if
30 days, secured by U.S. government or rated by Fitch, A or better
federal agency obligations

Medium-term corporate notes with One of the three highest applicable rating
maximum maturity of five years categories, or approved in writing, by S&P, and,

if rated by Fitch, one of the three highest
applicable rating categories

Money market mutual funds AAAm-G, AAA-m, or AA-m by S&P and, if
rated by Moody’s, Aaa, Aa1 or Aa2 and, if
rated by Fitch, AAA or AA

Investment agreements * N/A

* Investments may be allowed if the agency certifies to the trustee that the investment was
approved in writing by each rating agency, which has assigned a rating to the agency’s
bonds, and by the agency’s bond insurer.

At June 30, 2015, all of the agency’s investments were rated at or above the minimum levels required 
by its investment policy and its debt agreements, as shown below: 

Investment type S&P Moody’s

U.S. Treasury bills AA+ Aaa
U.S. Treasury notes AA+ Aaa
U.S. Treasury State and Local Government Series (SLGS) AA+ Aaa
U.S. federal agency bonds * AA+/A-1+ Aaa/ P-1
Money market funds AAAm —
Commercial paper:

Abbey National LLC A-1 P-1
General Electric Capital A-1+ P-1
Toyota Motor Credit Corp A-1+ P-1

State and local bonds:
San Francisco Bay Area Toll Authority AA Aa3
Indiana State Revenue AA+ Aa1
Missouri State Revenue AAA Aaa
University of California Regents Revenue AA Aa2

* Ratings are indicated to the extent available. However, in some instances, discounted federal
agency bonds are not rated.
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(c) Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that the agency will not be able to recover the value of 
investment securities that are in the possession of an outside party. All securities owned by the agency 
are deposited in the agency’s trustee bank with the exception of a money market account that is 
deposited in the agency’s primary bank. Securities are not held in broker accounts. 

(d) Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. The agency mitigates this risk by matching maturity dates, to the extent possible, with the 
agency’s expected cash flow. 

A summary of the agency’s investments held at June 30, 2015 that are governed by the agency’s 
investment policy and its bond agreements, including money market funds of $16,228 and Federal 
agency securities of $85,497 that are considered cash equivalents, is as follows: 

Remaining maturity (in years)
Less than One to Two to More than

Investment type Fair value one two five five

U.S. Treasury SLGS $ 155,557  —  —  —  155,557  
Federal agency securities 117,053  112,551  4,502  —  —  
Money market funds 16,228  16,228  —  —  —  
U.S. Treasury notes 15,713  5,103  5,057  5,553  —  
State and local bonds 13,852  13,852  —  —  —  
Commercial paper 9,360  9,360  —  —  —  

Total $ 327,763  157,094  9,559  5,553  155,557  

At June 30, 2015, with the exception of investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the 
U.S. government and money market mutual funds, there were no investments in any issuers that 
accounted for 5% or more of the agency’s total investments except for the following: Federal Farm 
Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Federal Home Loan Bank. Investments 
in these issuers represented 15%, 9%, and 7%, respectively, of the agency’s total investments, as 
permitted by the agency’s investment policy and the applicable bond indentures. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(5) Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 

Balance at Balance at
beginning of Transfers/ end of

year Additions deletions year

Construction in progress $ —  795  (795) —  
Right-of-way acquisitions, grading,

or improvements 119  —  —  119  
Furniture and equipment 12,063  1,645  (438) 13,270  

12,182  2,440  (1,233) 13,389  
Accumulated depreciation (5,718) (1,687) 438  (6,967) 

$ 6,464  753  (795) 6,422  

Right-of-way acquisitions, grading, and improvements include easements and environmental mitigation 
parcels. Furniture and equipment include transponders, toll and violations collection equipment, buildings, 
vehicles, and leasehold improvements. 

Transfer of Ownership 

Ownership of the San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor construction, rights-of-way, grading, and 
improvements was transferred to Caltrans during the year ended June 30, 1997, upon satisfaction of all 
conditions contained within the Cooperative Agreement between the agency and Caltrans. The agency incurs 
additional costs for improvements and enhancements to the thoroughfares previously transferred to Caltrans. 
These improvements and enhancements are covered by separate project-specific Cooperative Agreements 
with Caltrans. They are transferred to Caltrans on an ongoing basis and recognized as contribution expense. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(6) Long-Term Obligations 

Following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations during the year ended June 30, 2015: 

Balance at Balance at Due
beginning Additions/ end of within
of period accretions Reductions period one year

Series 2014 toll road refunding
revenue bonds:

Current interest bonds $ —  1,392,760  —  1,392,760  33,710  
Series 1997A toll road refunding

revenue bonds:
Current interest bonds 604,885  —  (604,885) —  —  
Convertible capital

appreciation bonds 250,000  —  (250,000) —  —  
Restructured convertible

capital appreciation
bonds 508,201  30,373  —  538,574  —  

Capital appreciation bonds 565,339  17,979  (400,000) 183,318  3,531  
Series 1993 Senior Lien toll

road revenue bonds:
Current interest bonds 220,180  —  (220,180) —  —  

Subtotal 2,148,605  1,441,112  (1,475,065) 2,114,652  37,241  

Plus unamortized premium on
2014 bonds —  78,347  (1,500) 76,847  —  

Total bonds payable 2,148,605  1,519,459  (1,476,565) 2,191,499  37,241  

Note payable to F/ETCA —  120,195  —  120,195  —  

Total long-term
obligations $ 2,148,605  1,639,654  (1,476,565) 2,311,694  37,241  

(a) Toll Road Revenue Bonds 

In October 1997, the agency issued serial, term, and capital appreciation toll road refunding revenue 
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $1,448,274, consisting of current interest bonds of 
$604,885, convertible capital appreciation bonds of $404,289, and capital appreciation bonds of 
$439,100 (collectively, the 1997 Bonds). The 1997 Bonds were subordinate to remaining outstanding 
1993 bonds of $220,180 and were collateralized by net revenue, as defined in the master indentures, 
consisting primarily of toll revenue less current expenses. 

In May 2011, bondholders consented to amending the master indentures and approved a supplemental 
indenture to amend certain terms of $430 million of the convertible capital appreciation bonds 
(Restructured Bonds) that had maturity dates in 2018, 2020, 2022, 2023, and 2024. The primary change 
in terms for these bonds was to extend the originally scheduled maturity dates to 2037, 2038, 2040, 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

2041, and 2042, respectively. The Restructured Bonds ceased to bear interest on July 15, 2011 and a 
10-year accretion period through July 15, 2021 began during which interest on the bonds was 
scheduled to accrue at the same rates, ranging from 5.65% to 5.75% compounded semiannually, as 
had applied prior to the amendment. Commencing January 15, 2022, interest on the accreted value of 
the bonds was scheduled to be payable semiannually. The bonds were scheduled to mature in annual 
installments from January 15, 2037 to 2042, subject to early redemption from mandatory sinking fund 
payments beginning January 15, 2037 by payment of accrued interest and principal with no premium. 
In connection with the 2014 transaction described below, the terms of the Restructured Bonds were 
amended to provide for interest rates that range from 5.90% to 6.00%; adjusted maturity dates that 
range from January 15, 2038 to 2046; and an increase of $12,400 in the aggregate maturity value, to 
$768,700. 

In November 2014, the agency issued $1,098,850 of Series 2014 Senior Lien Current Interest Toll 
Road Refunding Revenue Bonds (2014 Senior Bonds) and $293,910 of Junior Lien Current Interest 
Toll Road Refunding Revenue Bonds (2014 Junior Bonds) (collectively, the 2014 Bonds); the 
proceeds of the issuance were used to refund the outstanding balances of the 1993 bonds, at par value 
plus accrued interest; the 1997 current interest bonds, at par value plus accrued interest; the 1997 
convertible capital appreciation bonds that had not been amended as described above, at par value plus 
accrued interest and a redemption premium of 1.0%; and a portion of the 1997 capital appreciation 
bonds, at accreted value of $400,000 plus a redemption premium of $109,326. 

As a result of this transaction, the ultimate maturity of the agency’s long-term debt obligations has 
been extended from 2042 to 2050. The reacquisition price of the refunded bonds exceeded their net 
carrying amount by $111,826; this amount is considered a deferred loss for accounting purposes, and 
is being amortized through 2036, the remaining period during which the refunded bonds were 
scheduled to be repaid. In addition, the agency incurred other transaction costs of $16,982, which were 
recorded as expense. The 2014 Bonds were issued at a premium of $78,347, which is being amortized 
over the life of the bonds. In connection with this transaction, total scheduled debt service payments 
increased by $793,761, and the agency realized an economic gain (as measured by the difference in 
present value of the scheduled debt service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately 
$44 million. 

The 2014 Senior Bonds are scheduled to mature in installments from January 2016 through 
January 2050, and interest is payable semiannually at 5.00%. The 2014 Junior Bonds are scheduled to 
mature in installments from January 2037 through January 2049, and interest is payable semiannually 
at 5.25%. The 2014 Senior Bonds scheduled to mature after 2028 and the 2014 Junior Bonds are 
subject to early redemption on or after January 15, 2025, at the option of the agency, by payment of 
principal and accrued interest. 

The 1997 convertible capital appreciation bonds not amended by the supplemental indenture accrued 
interest at rates ranging from 5.60% to 5.75% compounded semiannually, through January 15, 2007. 
Interest was payable semiannually based on accreted value of the bonds on that date. The bonds were 
scheduled to mature in installments during 2016, 2017, 2019, and 2021. The bonds were subject to 

26 (Continued) 



 

 

 

 

  

         

          
         

 

       
      

      
  

      
 

  

      
          

       
        

       
        

 

        
    

 

  

     
           

        
           

   
     

  

         
            

           
        

           
          

SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

early redemption, at the option of the agency, beginning January 15, 2014 by payment of accrued 
interest, principal, and a premium of up to 2.00%. 

The remaining outstanding balance of the 1997 capital appreciation bonds accrues interest at rates 
ranging from 4.20% to 5.67% compounded semiannually. The bonds mature in annual installments 
through January 15, 2036. 

A portion of the Series 1997 bonds was used to purchase U.S. government securities, which were 
placed in an irrevocable escrow fund to be used for the debt service payments related to the refunded 
portion of the 1993 bonds. As of June 30, 2015, the amount of the refunded bonds outstanding, which 
was previously eliminated from the financial statements as a result of the refunding, is $880,350. 

Included in principal at June 30, 2015 is $395,822 related to accreted principal on convertible capital 
appreciation bonds and capital appreciation bonds. 

(b) Debt Compliance 

In connection with the 2011 amendment of the master indenture discussed above in note 6(a), the debt 
service coverage ratio was modified from 1.3x to 1.0x and allowance was made for the use of cash 
available in reserves to meet the debt service coverage ratio requirement, along with a requirement to 
maximize net toll revenue on an annual basis. These requirements were further modified in connection 
with the issuance of the 2014 Bonds, including the institution of debt service coverage ratio 
requirements of 1.3x for the Senior Lien Bonds and 1.1x for the Junior Lien Bonds and the elimination 
of the toll revenue maximization requirement. 

The master indentures of trust require the trustee to hold the bond proceeds, toll revenue, and any other 
proceeds included in pledged funds for debt service. These moneys are included in restricted cash and 
investments. 

(c) Note Payable to F/ETCA 

On November 10, 2005, the agency’s Board of Directors and the Board of Directors of F/ETCA 
entered into a Mitigation Payment and Loan Agreement (the Agreement). The terms of the Agreement 
called for F/ETCA to make payments to the agency totaling $120,000 over four years to mitigate for 
the anticipated loss of revenue due to the construction of the 241 completion project. All scheduled 
payments totaling $120,000 were made by F/ETCA as of June 2009. In addition, F/ETCA committed 
to provide loans, subject to the terms of the Agreement, on an as needed basis, up to $1,040,000 to 
assist the agency in achieving its debt service coverage ratio. However, no amounts were borrowed. 

The Agreement was designed to meet the near term needs of each agency while preserving the 
flexibility to continue to pursue alternatives. The Agreement provided that F/ETCA loans would be 
made only to the extent that surplus revenue was available and all findings and determinations required 
by law were met, including California Government Code Section 66484.3, paragraph (f), which 
required that the following findings must be met before F/ETCA could make a loan: 1) F/ETCA will 
benefit mutually financially by sharing and/or loaning revenue with the agency, 2) F/ETCA possesses 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

adequate financial resources to fund all costs of construction of existing and future projects that it plans 
to undertake prior to the final maturity of the loan, and 3) funding the loan will not materially impair 
F/ETCA’s financial condition or operations during the term of the loan. The agency’s obligation to 
repay the loans was, in turn, secured by and payable only from its toll stabilization and surplus revenue 
funds. The Agreement also stipulated that F/ETCA would not be obligated to make loans to the agency 
prior to securing the necessary funds for constructing the 241 completion project unless F/ETCA has 
determined that it would not build the project. If the commencement and diligent pursuit of the 
construction of the 241 completion project did not occur by June 30, 2015, the mitigation payments 
would be added to the principal amount of the loan. 

On August 14, 2014, the agency’s Board of Directors and the Board of Directors of F/ETCA approved 
an agreement that provided for termination of the Mitigation Payment and Loan Agreement 
concurrently with the closing of the refinance transaction described above in note 6(a). The termination 
agreement also provided for the agency to pay $120,000 to F/ETCA, in annual installments beginning 
January 15, 2025 equal to 50% of the agency’s surplus funds as defined in the agreement. Interest 
accrual based on the average annual yield of the State of California Pooled Money Investment Account 
commenced upon closing of the transaction and interest is payable annually beginning January 15, 
2025. 

(d) Scheduled Debt Service 

Following is a summary of the annual debt service requirements by fiscal year for the agency’s 
long-term debt obligations, exclusive of the note payable to F/ETCA and related interest, as of June 30, 
2015: 

Junior lien
Principal Interest(1) interest(1) Total

2016 $ 37,241  54,204  15,430  106,875  
2017 21,485  53,126  15,430  90,041  
2018 3,258  52,847  15,430  71,535  
2019 3,453  53,097  15,430  71,980  
2020 858  52,607  15,430  68,895  
2021–2025 91,265  500,923  77,151  669,339  
2026–2030 134,952  518,624  77,151  730,727  
2031–2035 202,435  505,548  77,151  785,134  
2036–2040 348,224  459,217  73,572  881,013  
2041–2045 571,698  309,675  49,143  930,516  
2046–2050 699,783  183,078  13,402  896,263  

$ 2,114,652  2,742,946  444,720  5,302,318  
(1) Includes payments scheduled on January 1 and January 15 of the indicated fiscal year and

July 1 and July 15 of the following fiscal year, to coincide with the annual debt service
calculations used for covenant compliance purposes.

28 (Continued) 



 

 

 

 

  

  

  

          
    

       
 

  

   
     
     

    

  

      
   

  

          
          

 

  

      
    

 

   

       
       

          
        

  

  

 
      

       
       

SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(7) Commitments and Contingencies 

(a) Toll Collection and Revenue Management System Agreements 

The agency and F/ETCA have entered into agreements with various contractors for various services, 
including toll collection systems operation and maintenance. The agreements expire on various dates 
through June 30, 2025 and are generally cancelable by the agency, without further obligation, with 
advance written notice. 

(b) Corridor Operations Facility Lease 

In January 2000, the agency relocated to the corridor operations facility and signed a lease agreement 
with F/ETCA. Lease payments are based on the estimated fair market rental value and are adjusted 
annually. The agency incurred lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2015 of $386. The agency’s 
commitment for the year ending June 30, 2016 is $471. 

(c) Commitment 

The agency has agreed with Caltrans to provide a maintenance facility for State Route 73. As of 
June 30, 2015, the agency has earmarked approximately $8 million for this project. 

(d) Litigation 

The agency is a defendant in various legal actions. Management believes that the ultimate resolution 
of these actions will not have a significant effect on the agency’s financial position or results of 
operations. 

(e) Risk Management 

The agency maintains insurance coverage for various risks including but not limited to property, 
liability, earthquake, and flood coverage. Coverage is purchased in accordance with the agency’s 
master indentures of trust, as applicable. 

(8) Employees’ Retirement Plans 

Defined Benefit Plan – Qualified permanent employees of the agency participate in a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by OCERS, a public employee retirement 
system established in 1945. The Plan is subject to the provisions of the County Employees Retirement Law 
of 1937 (California Government Code Section 31450 et. seq.); the California Public Employees’ Pension 
Reform Act of 2013 (Government Code Section 7522 et. seq.); and other applicable statutes. 

(a) Benefits 

The Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to eligible plan members and their 
beneficiaries. Monthly retirement benefits are determined by benefit formulas that depend upon the 
classification of employees; the date of entering membership in OCERS or a reciprocal plan; 
retirement age; years of service; and final average compensation. The agency’s members hired prior 
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CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 
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to January 1, 2013 are subject to a benefit formula of 2.0% of final average compensation per year of 
service, based upon retirement at age 55. Members hired on or after January 1, 2013 are subject to a 
benefit formula of 2.5% at 67. 

Amounts payable for retired members are subject to annual cost-of-living adjustments based upon 
changes in the Consumer Price Index for the prior calendar year. Adjustments are limited to a 
maximum increase or decrease of 3% per year. 

(b) Contributions 

Employer and employee contribution requirements are determined as percentages of covered payroll 
amounts and vary based upon the age of each employee at the date of entering membership in OCERS 
or a reciprocal plan. Employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuarial 
cost method based upon a level percentage of payroll. For the year ended December 31, 2014, 
employer contribution rates ranged from 21.04% to 57.28%. Employee contributions are established 
by the OCERS Board of Retirement and guided by applicable state statutes. For the year ended 
December 31, 2014, employee contribution rates ranged from 8.93% to 15.63%. The amount of 
contributions from the agency recognized by the plan, measured as the total amount recognized as 
additions to the plan’s fiduciary net position for the period ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, was 
$384 and $367, which was 100% of the required contribution, and represented 21% and 19.2% of the 
agency’s covered-employee payroll, respectively. 

(c) Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

For purposes of reporting under GASB Statement No. 68, OCERS arranged for determination of the 
plan’s collective net pension liability; deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions; 
and pension expense, as well as the proportionate share of each amount applicable to the plan’s 
participating employers, using measurement dates of December 31, 2014 and 2013, with respective 
actuarial valuations as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 and standard procedures to roll forward to the 
respective measurement dates. The agency’s reporting dates are June 30, 2015 and 2014. The 
proportionate shares of these amounts attributable to the Transportation Corridor Agencies have been 
determined by OCERS’s actuary based upon actual employer contributions within each rate group and 
further allocated between the agency and F/ETCA on the basis of their respective shares of covered 
payroll to determine the amounts reportable by the agency, as indicated below: 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

Percentage Covered
of collective employee

amount payroll

Collective net pension liability at
December 31, 2014 $ 5,082,481   100.00%

Proportionate share attributable to
Transportation Corridor Agencies 10,683   0.21% $ 6,121   

Share allocable to San Joaquin Hills
Transportation Corridor Agency 3,126   0.06% 1,832   

Agency’s share of collective net pension liability as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll 171%

Plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 69.42%

Percentage Covered
of collective employee

amount payroll

Collective net pension liability at
December 31, 2013 $ 5,291,126   100.00%

Proportionate share attributable to
Transportation Corridor Agencies 11,359   0.21% $ 6,551   

Share allocable to San Joaquin Hills
Transportation Corridor Agency 3,320   0.06% 1,915   

Agency’s share of collective net pension liability as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll 173%

Plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 67.16%

Collective deferred outflows of resources at December 31, 2014 $ 389,055   
Proportionate share attributable to Transportation Corridor Agencies 453   
Share allocable to San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency 136   

Collective deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2014 538,504   
Proportionate share attributable to Transportation Corridor Agencies 1,443   
Share allocable to San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency 432   

Collective pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2015 566,324   
Proportionate share attributable to Transportation Corridor Agencies 1,594   
Share allocable to San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency 477   
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

The agency’s deferred outflows of resources related to pensions as of June 30, 2015 are attributable to 
the following: 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan
investments $ 136   

Contributions to the plan subsequent to the measurement date of the
collective net pension liability 239   

Total deferred outflows related to pensions $ 375   

The agency’s deferred inflows of resources related to pensions as of June 30, 2015 are attributable to 
the following: 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 190   
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 242   

Total deferred inflows related to pensions $ 432   

The amount of $239 representing the agency’s balance of deferred outflows of resources related to 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ending June 30, 2016. The other amounts of the agency’s balances of deferred 
outflows and deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2015 will be recognized in pension expense 
as follows: 

Year ending June 30:
2016 $ 49   
2017 49   
2018 49   
2019 49   
2020 85   
2021 15   

$ 296   

(d) Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs 

The following significant methods and assumptions were used to measure the plan’s total pension 
liability as of December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

 Actuarial experience study – Three-year period ended December 31, 2013 

 Inflation rate – 3.00% for 2014; 3.25% for 2013 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

 Projected salary increases – 4.25% to 17.50% for 2014; 4.75% to 17.75% for 2013, depending 
upon service and nature of employment 

 Cost of living adjustments – 3.00% 

The mortality assumptions for December 31, 2014 were based on the results of the actuarial experience 
study for the period January 1, 2011 through December 31, 2013 using the RP-2000 Combined Healthy 
Mortality Table projected with the Society of Actuaries Scale BB to 2020. The mortality assumptions 
for December 31, 2013 were based on the results of the actuarial experience study for the period 
January 1, 2008 through December 31, 2010 using the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table. 
The mortality assumptions were then customized to account for the plan’s membership experience. 

The discount rate used to measure the plan’s total pension liability of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rates and that employer contributions will be 
made at actuarially determined rates. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The long-term expected rate of 
return should be determined without reduction for plan administrative expense. The 7.25% investment 
return assumption is net of administrative expenses, assumed to be 16 basis points. The long-term 
expected rate of return on plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return are developed for each major asset class. 
These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages and by adding expected inflation 
and deducting expected investment expenses. 
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

The target allocation and projected arithmetic real rate of return for each major asset class, after 
deducting inflation but before deducting investment expenses, used in the derivation of the long-term 
expected rate of return assumption are summarized in the following table: 

Long-term
expected

Target real rate
Asset class allocation of return

Large Cap U.S. Equity 14.90% 5.92%
Small/Mid Cap U.S. Equity 2.73 6.49
Developed International Equity 10.88 6.90
Emerging International Equity 6.49 8.34
Core Bonds 10.00 0.73
Global Bonds 2.00 0.30
Emerging Market Debt 3.00 4.00
Real Estate 10.00 4.96
Diversified Credit (U.S.) 8.00 4.97
Diversified Credit (Non-U.S.) 2.00 6.76
Hedge Funds 7.00 4.13
GTAA 7.00 4.22
Real return 10.00 5.86
Private equity 6.00 9.60

Total 100.00%

The following table presents the agency’s proportionate share of the plan’s net pension liability as of 
December 31, 2014, calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point 
lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current discount rate: 

Net pension liability, calculated:
With current discount rate of 7.25% $ 3,126   
With a 1% decrease, to 6.25% 4,673   
With a 1% increase, to 8.25% 1,984   
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SAN JOAQUIN HILLS TRANSPORTATION 
CORRIDOR AGENCY 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2015 

(In thousands) 

(e) Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position 

OCERS provides publicly available financial information, including comprehensive annual financial 
reports and actuarial valuations, on the following website: www.ocers.org. Detailed information about 
the plan’s fiduciary net position is included in the comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal 
year ended December 31, 2014, which may also be obtained by calling (714) 558-6200. 

(f) Employee Contributions 

As described above, plan members contribute a percentage of their annual covered salaries at 
actuarially determined rates based on the age of entry into the plan. For employees who were hired 
prior to January 1, 2013, the agency paid up to 7% of each employee’s required contribution through 
June 30, 2013. However, this percentage was reduced to 4.5% as of July 1, 2013 and to 2.0% as of 
July 1, 2014. As of July 1, 2015, the agency’s payments toward the employees’ required contributions 
have been fully eliminated. In addition to the pension expense determined in accordance with the 
requirements of GASB No. 68 as described above, the agency incurred expense of $26 for the year 
ended June 30, 2015 related to its subsidization of employee contributions. 

Defined Contribution Plan – The agency also sponsors a defined contribution plan under the provisions of 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 that permits employees to defer portions of their pre-tax compensation. 
The agency provides matching contributions to a related Section 401(a) plan, at a rate of 50% of the 
employees’ deferral contributions, up to a maximum of 2% of each employee’s related compensation. In 
connection with this plan, the agency incurred $24 of expense for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
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BUDGET: 

The Capital Improvement Plan for each agency will continue to be reviewed each year during the 
budget process. Project priorities and the availability of funds will help determine the projects 
selected for implementation and the funding allocations for each project. 

CONCLUSION: 

This annual update to the CIP for each agency outlines the scope, cost and schedule for the major 
capital improvement projects Funding levels for the FY16 budget are proposed and 
recommended by staff. 
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Background 
The Transportation Corridor Agencies’ 51 miles of toll roads have been operational for more than 16 

years since the most recent opening and over 22 years for the initial segment of the State Route (SR) 

241 Toll Road between Portola Parkway (North) and Portola Parkway (South). The last sixteen miles of 

the 67-mile system, including the 5.5 mile Tesoro Extension, remains to be constructed and opened to 

traffic. Long range planning of the balance of the 241 from the Tesoro Extension to Interstate 5 

continues and an alignment has not yet been defined. 

Once highway segments become operational, various roadway expansions and operational 

improvement projects are required to keep pace with increasing traffic demands and changing 

conditions, land uses and demographics. These improvements, which make up the Capital Improvement 

Plan or CIP, are all components of the total ultimate buildout of the Toll Road Corridors as envisioned in 

the respective environmental documentation for each. The Ultimate Corridors will provide two, three 

or four mixed flow traffic lanes plus one additional general purpose or HOV (High Occupancy Vehicle) 

lane in each direction. 

The CIPs were first developed in the late 1990’s and identified the complete list of projects required to 

attain ultimate buildout of the system. The CIPs are updated annually and the current planned 

implementation schedule for projects is shown in Figure 1 and the costs are shown in Table 1. All costs 

in this report are estimated in 2016 dollars. 
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Estimated Project Costs by Agency 

FY14 & 

Prior

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16 

Budget

FY17 & 

Later

Total 

Project 

Cost

1 SR241 Long Range Planning/Tesoro Ext.  $281.20  $    17.52  $      2.94  $1,374.85  $1,676.51 

2 241/91 Connector        2.20          0.62          1.20       178.79  $   182.81 

3 Wildlife Safety Fencing        0.47          6.14          4.58         11.80  $     22.99 

4 Toll Plaza Water Supply Upgrade        0.23          0.05          0.44              -    $       0.72 

5 Signage Improvements            -                -            0.79           1.17  $       1.97 

6 Toll Plaza Facility Improvements            -                -            1.89  TBD  $       1.89 

TBD F/ETCA Future Widening Projects        4.86              -                -    TBD  $       4.86 

TBD F/ETCA Future Interchanges            -                -                -    TBD  TBD 

F/E Totals  $288.96  $    24.33  $    11.84  $1,566.61  $1,891.75 

1 73/405 Connector            -                -                -    TBD  TBD 

2 Caltrans Maintenance Station            -                -                -             7.93  $       7.93 

3 Bonita Channel Bicycle Trail            -                -            0.10  TBD  $       0.10 

4 Signage Improvements            -                -            0.47           0.46  $       0.93 

5 Toll Plaza Facility Improvements            -                -            1.10  TBD  $       1.10 

TBD SJHTCA Future Widening Projects            -                -                -    TBD  TBD 

TBD SJHTCA Future Interchanges            -                -                -    TBD  TBD 

SJH Totals  $        -    $          -    $      1.67  $       8.39  $     10.06 

San Joaquin Hills

Foothill/Eastern

In $1,000,000

No. Title

Table 1 
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SR 241 Long Range Planning 
F/ETCA Project No. 1 

Description Funding for the long range planning required to complete SR 241 includes two efforts. The 

first relates to the Tesoro Extension Project and is more thoroughly described on the following page.  

The remaining effort, beyond the Tesoro Extension Project, includes identifying options that address the 

region’s future needs for mobility and accessibility, and providing improvements that meet those needs. 

Purpose and Need Regional planning efforts to date demonstrate the need for additional transportation 

improvements to relieve existing and future congestion on Interstate 5 and local arterials in south 

Orange County.  The F/ETCA is evaluating those needs to identify an acceptable solution. 

Project Status The 241 Long Range Planning efforts are in the community outreach stage which is 

expected to continue until FY2017. 

Environmental The F/ETCA, in coordination with the Federal Highway Administration, formally stopped 

all environmental work on the 241 completion project when the Notices of Intent to prepare an 

Environmental Impact Statement under the National Environmental Policy Act were rescinded in the 

Federal Register on April 8, 2014. This rescission was due in part to the U.S. Secretary of Commerce 

upholding the California Coastal Commission’s objection to the 241 “Green Alignment” within the 

coastal area of Camp Pendleton. Future alignments would require the preparation of an environmental 

document in compliance with state and federal environmental regulations. 

Design Limited design work to support the outreach, engineering and environmental long range 

planning efforts is expected to continue through FY16. 

Construction Construction will begin after a route is identified and the environmental process is 

completed.  

Cost/Budget Total project costs are estimated as shown in Table 2. 

Schedule Estimated completion in CY2021. 
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Tesoro Extension 
F/ETCA Project No. 1A 

Description In October 2011, the Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Board of Directors 
voted to pursue a stand-alone extension of the SR 241 from Oso Parkway to the vicinity of Ortega 
Highway to provide an alternative route and improved mobility for a growing area of Orange County.  
This project is called the Tesoro Extension and consists of a 5.5 mile extension of the existing SR 241 
from Oso Parkway south to Cow Camp Road, which is currently under construction.  

Purpose and Need The project is proposed to provide improvements to the Orange County 
transportation network infrastructure system to alleviate future traffic congestion and accommodate 
the need for mobility, access, goods movement and future traffic demands on I-5 and the arterial 
network in southern Orange County. 

Project Status The 241 Tesoro 

Extension project is currently in the 

environmental clearance stage 

Environmental Environmental 
studies will need to be updated and 
permits obtained. 

Design Preliminary design for the 
project is completed. Final design 
will advance following completion of 
all environmental clearances. 

Construction Construction of the 
Tesoro Extension will advance 
following completion of all 
environmental clearances. 

Cost/Budget Total project costs are 
estimated as shown in the Table 2. 

Schedule The schedule is to be 
determined following the successful 
TCA appeal of the March 2015 San 
Diego Regional Water Quality Control 
Board decision, which is expected to 
be completed in Summer 2016. 

Table 
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SR 241 TESORO EXTENSION AND 241 LONG RANGE PLANNING

 Activity  FY14 & Prior  FY15 Proj.  Proposed FY16  FY17 & Later  Total 

Engineering Design/Oversight  $       54,284.0            2,038.8  $              2,060.0  $           32,691.1  $           91,073.9 

Util ity Relocation             1,243.0                      -                               -                 13,000.0               14,243.0 

Right of Way           13,493.0          15,008.2                             -                 27,806.3               56,307.5 

Design/Build Contract           65,052.0                      -                               -               942,999.6          1,008,051.6 

Const. Engineering Mgmt.                 597.0                      -                               -                 51,086.9               51,683.9 

Contingency                        -                 100.0                      220.0             112,619.8             112,939.8 

Subtotal         134,669.0          17,147.1                   2,280.0          1,180,203.6          1,334,299.7 

           - FY16 & later                        -                        -    $      1,182,483.6 ï

Environmental           26,526.0               372.1                      655.0               35,743.9               63,297.0 

Public Benefits                        -                        -                               -               100,000.0             100,000.0 

Insurance/Toll Collection Systems                        -                        -                               -                 58,900.3               58,900.3 

Subtotal         161,195.0          17,519.2                   2,935.0          1,374,847.8          1,556,497.0 

73 Mitigation         120,000.0                      -                               -                              -               120,000.0 

Total  $    281,195.0  $     17,519.2  $              2,935.0  $     1,374,847.8  $     1,676,497.0 

           - FY16 & later  $      1,377,782.8 ï

PROJECT 1A - TESORO EXTENSION

Engineering Design/Oversight  $         3,970.0  $           862.1  $                  801.0 

Utility Relocation                        -                        -                               -   

Right of Way                 104.0          15,008.2                             -   

Design/Build Contract             7,148.0                      -                               -   

Const. Engineering Mgmt.                 114.0                      -                               -   

Contingency                        -                        -                        120.0 

Subtotal           11,336.0          15,870.3                      921.0 

           - FY16 & later  TBD 

Environmental             2,024.0               166.4                      125.0 

Public Benefits                        -                        -                               -   

Insurance/Toll Collection Systems                        -                        -                               -   

Subtotal           13,360.0          16,036.7                   1,046.0 

73 Mitigation                        -                        -                               -   

Total  $       13,360.0  $     16,036.7  $              1,046.0 

           - FY16 & later  TBD 

PROJECT 1 - 241 LONG RANGE PLANNING

Engineering Design/Oversight  $       50,314.0  $        1,176.8  $              1,259.0 

Utility Relocation             1,243.0                             -   

Right of Way           13,389.0                             -   

Design/Build Contract           57,904.0                             -   

Const. Engineering Mgmt.                 483.0                             -   

Contingency                        -                 100.0                      100.0 

Subtotal         123,333.0            1,276.8                   1,359.0 

           - FY16 & later  TBD 

Environmental           24,502.0               205.7                      530.0 

Public Benefits                        -                               -   

Insurance/Toll Collection Systems                        -                               -   

Subtotal         147,835.0            1,482.5                   1,889.0 

73 Mitigation         120,000.0                             -   

Total  $    267,835.0  $        1,482.5  $              1,889.0 

           - FY16 & later  TBD 

In $1,000

 To Be Determined 

 To Be Determined 
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241/91 Connector 
F/ETCA Project No. 2 

Description The project consists of providing a single lane (in each direction) directional connector 
between the median of the 91 Express Lanes to and from the east and the median of SR 241. 

Purpose and Need The 241/91 connector between the two toll facilities is an integral component of the 
Eastern Corridor Ultimate Project (SR 241) as well as OCTA’s SR 91 Implementation Plan. Traffic on SR 91 
east of SR 241 greatly exceeds the capacity of the existing roadway during extended peak hours and 
many improvements have been proposed to alleviate this congestion. The project will close the current 
toll system gap by connecting SR 241 with the 91 Express Lanes to and from the east. 

Project Status Staff is proceeding with the required preliminary engineering and environmental studies 
necessary to advance the project. The Riverside County Transportation Commission (RCTC) has begun 
construction of the extension of the 91 Express Lanes from the Riverside/Orange County Line east to 
Interstate 15. Preliminary traffic and revenue studies show the project to be revenue positive to both 
F/ETCA and RCTC with no impact on OCTA 91 Express Lanes revenue. An investment-grade traffic and 
revenue study is expected to be completed in 2016. 

Environmental An HOV connector ramp between SR 241 and SR 91 was included as a project 
component in the Eastern Transportation Corridor (SR 133, 241, 261) environmental document, EIS No. 
2-1. A Supplemental EIR/EIS is underway to evaluate the minor changes in the existing condition of the 
project area and project limits. 

Design It is anticipated that a final design procurement package will be developed for release next fiscal 
year and the project will be delivered under the conventional design-bid-build process. 

Construction The project would impact traffic during the estimated 18-month construction period. The 
eastbound lanes of SR 91 (including OCTA 91 express lanes) require complete relocation and 
reconstruction for a minimum length of approximately one mile to provide sufficient room in the SR 91 
median for the connector ramp. 

Costs/Budget The FY16 proposed budget includes completion of preliminary design documents and a 
Draft Supplemental EIR/EIS for the project. This cost is being partially shared with OCTA under a 
cooperative agreement. Participation levels and roles and responsibilities, as well as roles of each 
agency for the remainder of the project are yet to be determined and the amounts shown in this report 
represent the total estimated cost. 

Schedule Staff proposes in FY16 to continue with preliminary engineering and necessary environmental 
documentation for the project. As agreed with OCTA, F/ETCA will be taking the lead in these efforts. 
The expected completion date of construction is Spring 2019. 
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Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16 FY17 & Later Total

Engineering Oversight  $            401  $            315  $                  90  $                     5,445  $                  6,251 

TCA Technical Memorandum                282                   -                         -                                   -                            282 

OCTA Study                334                   -                         -                                   -                            334 

Design/Environmental            1,878                511                    448                       22,457                    25,294 

Traffic Studies                  19                  36                    870                                16                          941 

Right-of-Way                   -                     -                         -                            2,000                      2,000 

Construction                   -                     -                         -                       120,200                 120,200 

Const. Engineering Mgmt.                   -                     -                         -                            9,000                      9,000 

OCTA Reimbursement              (718)              (281)                  (344)  TBD                    (1,343)

Contingency & Miscellaneous                   -                    43                    132                       19,669                    19,844 

Total  $        2,196  $            624  $            1,196  $                 178,787  $             182,803 

In $1,000

Table 3 
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Wildlife Safety Fencing 
F/ETCA Project No. 3 

Description As mitigation for impacts of the Eastern Transportation Corridor, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service (USFWS) required the F/ETCA to construct a minimum of four wildlife undercrossings and 
conduct a five-year study documenting wildlife usage of those undercrossings.1 This study was 
completed in 2004. In 2009, USFWS notified F/ETCA staff that they had concerns with the performance 
of the undercrossings, specifically the number of animals crossing the 241 Toll Road at-grade. 

In response to these concerns, the F/ETCA contracted with the University of California, Davis Wildlife 
Health Center (U.C. Davis) in 2011 to further study the undercrossings and adjacent fencing, and to 
formulate recommendations to enhance wildlife movement and safety along SR 241. In 2013, U.C. Davis 
completed their assessment of the existing fencing and the wildlife undercrossings along the 241 Toll 
Road, and provided recommendations to F/ETCA that included installing a taller wildlife fence and jump-
out ramps. Staff consulted with USFWS on these recommendations and obtained agreement on the 
suggested improvements in 2013. In December 2013, staff presented the wildlife fence improvement 
recommendations to the Board for authorization to award a contract to implement these 
improvements. In February 2014, staff obtained an amended biological opinion from USFWS allowing 
F/ETCA to proceed with the project. 

Purpose and Need The Wildlife Safety Fencing project is designed to enhance the wildlife crossings built 
as part of the Eastern Transportation Corridor.  

Project Status The project is partially complete with additional future phases planned. 

Environmental The project is covered under the original Eastern Transportation Corridor environmental 
document, EIS No. 2-1. An amended biological opinion was issued by U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service in 
February 2014. 

Design Phase 1 & 2A design is complete. Phase 2B (1.1 miles) is proposed as part of the Fiscal Year 
2016 budget. Upon project completion, U.C. Davis will continue monitoring the undercrossings and 
conduct post-construction monitoring to document the project’s effectiveness in reducing wildlife-
vehicle collisions. U.C. Davis’ monitoring will also include the use of GPS collars on mountain lions, as 
well as cameras placed at the undercrossings to document the use of the SR 241 wildlife undercrossings 
in a manner that was agreed to by USFWS.  

Construction Phase 1 & 2A (5.3 miles) of the new wildlife fence project is currently under construction. 

Cost/Budget The project costs are shown in Table 4. 

Schedule Phase 2B is scheduled to be completed by June 2016. 
designed in conjunction with the 241 Widening Project (133 to Chapman). 

1 Biological Opinion (BO) 1-6-94-F-17 issued by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
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Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16 FY17 & Later Total

Consultant  $           153  $              -    $           100  $                   300 553$                  

Design                  92                   -                 450                       250 792$                  

Construction               180            5,630            3,800                   9,948 19,558$            

Const. Engineering Mgmt.                  43               511               230                       739 1,523$               

Contingency & Miscellaneous                   -                     -                     -                         562 562$                  

Total  $           468  $       6,141  $       4,580  $             11,799 22,988$            

In $1,000

Table 4 
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Toll Plaza Water Supply Upgrade (Tomato Springs) 
F/ETCA Project No. 4 

Description The project consists of two elements: 

1) The domestic water connection for the Tomato Springs and Orange Grove mainline toll plazas will be 
converted to the Irvine Ranch Water District (IRWD) Zone 6 system. The new connection allows the 
agency to deactivate and abandon the existing 180,000 gallon water reservoir which formerly served 
these toll plazas.  

2) Conversion of the irrigation system to non-domestic water use. Currently the toll plazas and 
surrounding Caltrans landscaped areas are irrigated by a single domestic irrigation system. IRWD’s 
preference is that landscaping be irrigated with non-domestic or reclaimed water. The agency has 
developed plans for this conversion, which will allow the agency to utilize reclaimed water as well as 
turn over the Caltrans portion of the irrigation system (along with the related water costs) to the State. 

Purpose and Need When constructing segments of the 241, 261, and 133 Toll Roads and the associated 
toll collection facilities, utility services were provided from public utilities whenever possible. Certain 
areas were too remote, or the needed utility was not available, to economically provide the desired 
public utility connections. Such was the case at the Tomato Springs Mainline Toll Plaza where fire flow 
pressure did not exist and the agency was forced to construct its own vinyl lined water reservoir to meet 
the prescribed fire flow demand. Direct feeds from a newly constructed IRWD reservoir have eliminated 
the need for the TCA-maintained reservoir and provide a permanent solution for the plaza’s water 
supply. 

Environmental A Categorical Exemption was prepared as there are minimal impacts associated with this 
project. 

Design Construction drawings have been developed for the reservoir decommissioning. Design work 
has been substantially completed for the irrigation system conversion. 

Construction Impacts No impacts are anticipated. 

Cost/Budget The remaining project estimated costs of $440,000 will be utilized for decommissioning 
the reservoir and miscellaneous related items. In FY2016 a cost estimate will be developed for the 
proposed irrigation change from potable to non-potable water. A breakdown of costs is included in 
Table 5. 

Schedule The reservoir decommissioning is anticipated to be complete in FY2016. The non-domestic 
irrigation switchover is anticipated to be complete in FY2017.  
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Laguna 
Hills 

LokFOl'fft 

Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16

FY17 & 

Later Total

IRWD Design  $         42  $          -    $         -    $          -    $         42 

IRWD Construction           145              -               -                -             145 

Reservoir Decommissioning Design             32              50             -                -               82 

TCA Construction               2              -             440              -             442 

Irrigation Switch to Non-Potable              -                -               -    TBD  TBD 

Contingency and Miscellaneous               9              -               -                -                 9 

Total  $       230  $          50  $       440  $          -    $       720 

In $1,000

Table 5 
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Signage Improvements 
F/ETCA Project No. 5 

Description This project provides updated messaging on the large overhead signage on the freeway and 
major arterial approaches to the toll road system. Also included are improved signage for ramp 
entrances, roadside signage, freeway-to-toll road transition signs and lane stenciling and changes to 
signage to simplify messaging related to our payment method for infrequent users (One-Time-Toll). 

Purpose and Need Supplemental signage along with refinements to existing signs are recommended in 
order to better communicate to drivers how to use the toll road system. The proposed changes 
incorporate the latest federal and state standards for use on toll facilities. 

Project Status The project is currently in the concept development phase with final design expected to 
be complete in the next fiscal year. Implementation of all signage improvements is expected to 
continue through FY2017. 

Environmental No environmental impacts are foreseen. 

Design Customer research regarding sign messaging is currently underway and the results will be 
incorporated into the signage modifications. In December 2014, the Boards approved one-half of the 
estimated design costs for the signage work. The balance of the design costs will be brought before the 
Boards for approval following further review of the new signage concepts. 

Construction The signage replacement on the overhead facilities will require extensive lane and ramp 

closures throughout the toll road and freeway system. Major closures will be done at night and other 

off-peak travel times in order to minimize inconvenience to drivers. 

Cost/Budget A breakdown of costs is provided in Table 6. 

Schedule Preliminary concept development is anticipated to last through July 2015. The design work 
and Caltrans approval will follow with approval scheduled for September 2015. Minor sign work can be 
accomplished through the use of an on-call signage contractor, however it is anticipated that the major 
overhead signs would be done under a separate construction contract. This work will last through 
FY2017. 
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Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16

FY17 & 

Later Total

Customer Research  $          -    $          -    $         25  $          -    $         25 

Design              -                -             240             53           293 

Construction              -                -             498           830        1,328 

Construction Management              -                -               30           140           170 

Contingency and Miscellaneous              -                -               -             150           150 

Total  $          -    $          -    $       793  $    1,173  $    1,966 

In $1,000

Table 6 
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Toll Plaza Facility Improvements 
F/ETCA Project No. 6 

Description The project consists of two elements: 

1) A formal study is proposed to research possible uses for the toll booth and other toll plaza buildings 
throughout the system. The recommendations developed as part of this study will be brought before 
the Board for further action. 

2) Toll Booth removal – In order to minimize the initial costs of the All-Electronic Tolling conversion 
project, the majority of the toll booths on the system were left in place. It is proposed to remove the 
toll booths and related equipment in a prioritized manner. 

Purpose and Need The implementation of All-Electronic Tolling has substantially changed the facilities 
usage throughout the toll road system.  

Project Status The project will be started in FY 2016 with scope definition. 

Environmental The environmental impacts of the proposed improvements will be evaluated in detail 

however they appear at this stage to be minimal. 

Design The design scope will follow further definition of the project. 

Construction There will be lane and ramp closures along with demolition related to the toll booth 

removal work. 

Cost/Budget Total Project Costs are estimated as shown in Table 7. 

Schedule The study will be developed and finalized in FY2016 along with toll booth removal at high 
priority locations.  

20 



  

 

 

  

  

Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16

FY17 & 

Later Total

Preliminary Study  $          -    $          -    $       126  $          -    $       126 

Toll Booth Removal Phase 1              -                -          1,764              -          1,764 

Toll Booth Removal Phase 2              -                -               -    TBD  TBD 

Toll Booth Removal Phase 3              -                -               -    TBD  TBD 

Total  $          -    $          -    $    1,890  $          -    $    1,890 

In $1,000

Table 7 
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F/ETCA Future Widening Projects 

Over the past two decades the Orange County toll roads have become an integral part of the regional 
transportation system. Customer surveys show that people depend on the toll roads for reliability in the 
travel time it takes to reach their destination. As regional travel demand grows and the freeway and 
arterial system become more congested, the toll road system can sometimes experience congestion as 
well. In order to preserve dependable travel times, occasionally system expansion projects become 
warranted. 

The transportation corridor system is designed to be expanded with additional lanes as traffic demand 
and volumes grow. Space is also provided within the median for either additional travel lanes and/or 
potential transit facilities as the County of Orange and surrounding communities mature. Since the 
corridors were originally planned there have been several changes to several key factors that influence 
travel demand. These factors include residential and non-residential development changes, toll rates 
that differ from those originally forecast, shifts in population and employment, changes to the arterial 
highway system and changes in commuter behavior.  

Several widening projects have taken place on the toll road system since the original project 
construction in the late 1990’s (see Completed Projects). There have also been widening projects that 
were initiated yet not implemented as a result of the changes to travel demand (see Table 8).  
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Activity Limits

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16

FY17 & 

Later Total

241 Southbound Widening Bake to Santa Margarita  $    3,902  $          -    $         -    TBD  TBD 

241 Widening (Loma) 133 to Chapman           961                3               3  TBD  TBD 

Total  $    4,863  $            3  $           3  TBD  TBD 

In $1,000

Table 8 
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This interchange is included in 

F/ETCA Future Interchanges 

Just as all lanes of the toll road system were not constructed along with the original projects, several 
interchanges were also deferred during the original construction. The need for these deferred 
interchanges has changed over the years, for many of the same reasons affecting the widening projects. 
Major developer open space land dedications have reduced the need for some planned interchanges 
while new land uses have created demand for interchanges at previously unplanned locations. The 
following interchanges have been included in the long range plans for the toll road system and are 
included in the CIP. The timing for development of these interchanges will be evaluated annually as part 
of this document. As projects are advanced, they will be moved into the near- or mid-term categories. 

Five future interchanges and one interchange expansion were included in the Eastern Transportation 
Corridor environmental document.  The interchange numbers listed are from that original document: 

Interchange #2 - 241 @ Jeffrey Road Interchange 
The extension of Jeffrey Road north of Portola Parkway to the SR 241 (and beyond) remains on the 
OCTA Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH). Development in this area is not expected to begin until 
2025 at the earliest. This interchange is included in a reimbursement agreement between The Irvine 
Company and TCA. No reimbursements have been made to date. 

Interchange #3 - 241 @ North Culver Drive & Interchange #4 - 241 @ South Culver Drive 
These two interchanges were removed from further consideration as Culver Drive has been removed 
from the MPAH north of Portola Parkway. 

Interchange #5 - 241 @ North Lake Road 
A reduction in The Irvine Company development plans for the area north and west of the 241/261 
interchange has eliminated any need for this interchange. 

Interchange #6 - 241 @ Coal/Weir Canyon Road Interchange 
Weir Canyon Road remains on the MPAH; however, plans for development in the area have been 
shelved as this property was recently dedicated as permanent open space to the County of Orange. This 
interchange is included in a reimbursement agreement between The Irvine Company and TCA. Costs to 
date for this interchange amount to $47,000. 

241 @ 261 East Orange Interchange Expansion 
This interchange was planned to be expanded along with the development of the Santiago Hills (Phase 
II) development. As this property was recently dedicated as permanent open space to the County of 
Orange. This interchange has been included in a reimbursement agreement between The Irvine 
Company and TCA. Costs to date for this interchange amount to $61,000. The Irvine Company has 
recently informed the F/ETCA that they will no longer be participating in the funding for this 
interchange. 

133 @ Trabuco Road Interchange 
This interchange was never included in the ultimate plans for the 133. 
the North Irvine Traffic Mitigation program and is currently under consideration for implementation by 
the City of Irvine. As the project moves forward and is further established it will be advanced into near-
or mid-term categories. No TCA funding has been identified for this interchange. 
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73/405 Connector 
SJHTCA Project No. 1 

Description The project consists of providing a single lane (in each direction) connector between the 
median of the planned 405 Express Lanes to and from the west and the median of SR 73.  Figure 2 below 
shows the concept layout of the connector and Figure 3 shows the proximity of the project to the 
existing 73 toll road. 

Purpose and Need Traffic on I-405 west of SR 73 greatly exceeds the capacity of the existing roadway 
during extended peak hours and many improvements have been proposed to alleviate this congestion.  
The project will help close the toll system gap by connecting SR 73 with the future 405 Express Lanes to 
and from the west. 

Project Status The connector project is included within the I-405 Final Environmental Impact Report / 
Environmental Impact Statement. Timing of the project will be determined jointly between Caltrans and 
the Orange County Transportation Authority. Construction of the I-405 Improvement Project is 
estimated to be complete in 2022.  Agency participation in the project (if any) has yet to be determined. 

Figure 2 
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 Figure 3 
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Caltrans Maintenance Station 
SJHTCA Project No. 2 

Description The project is to develop a permanent 3.0-acre maintenance station at a location acceptable 

to Caltrans in South Orange County. The Station will be designed to house two maintenance crews, 

offices, equipment, shop and storage for a total building area of 8,480 sq. ft. Gas, sewer, water, 

telephone and electrical services shall be provided. 

Purpose and Need Construction and opening of the three Corridors increased the need for Caltrans 

maintenance facilities and the Cooperative Agreements with Caltrans for each of the Corridors defines 

the agency’s responsibilities for providing these facilities. The maintenance station represents the 

commitment for providing such a station related to the San Joaquin Corridor as specified in District 

Cooperative Agreement No. 12-079 (as amended). 

Project Status The project has not been advanced beyond that which has been defined in Exhibit A to 

Amendment 7 of Cooperative Agreement No. 12-079. Conceptual layouts have been discussed with 

Caltrans representatives to better define the requirements. The mutual agreement is to complete the 

station for Caltrans use and occupancy by December 31, 2015, however negotiations are underway to 

extend that date. 

Environmental The agency will prepare the environmental documents for construction of the station 
including impacts on the site surroundings and an Initial Site Assessment. 

Construction Impacts The maintenance site is currently planned for an undefined site in south Orange 
County. Impacts should be minimal. 

Cost/Budget Costs are forecast as shown in Table 9. 

Schedule No detailed schedule has been developed to date, pending agency and Caltrans decision and 

approval of the location. Design and construction of the facility will take approximately 2-1/2 years after 

site selection. The current scheduled completion date is December 31, 2015; however, negotiations are 

underway to extend that date. 
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Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16 FY17 & Later Total

Design  $             -    $                    -    $             -    $                600  $                600 

Construction                  -                          -                    -                  6,500                6,500 

Const. Engineering Mgmt.                  -                          -                    -                      300                    300 

Contingency                  -                          -                    -                      313                    313 

Subtotal  $             -    $                    -    $             -    $            7,713  $            7,713 

Interest per Agreement 12-079                    215  $                215 

Total  $             -    $                    -    $             -    $            7,928  $            7,928 

In $1,000

Table 9 



  

 
                                                 

 
   

    

   

 

      

       

      

 

     

 

     

    

  

     

 

      

     

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bonita Channel Bicycle Trail 
SJHTCA Project No. 3 

Description The project concept includes the transfer of the Bonita Creek Mitigation Site to the City of 

Newport Beach, as well as preliminary design and initial environmental review to extend the existing 

pedestrian and bicycle trail that parallels Bonita Creek south along Bonita Canyon Drive to the juncture 

with the 73 Toll Road. 

Purpose and Need The Bonita Creek Mitigation Site was completed in conjunction with the 

construction of the 73 Toll Road. The agency has met all of the resource agency permit requirements in 

2002 for the mitigation area. Agency staff is now exploring with the City of Newport Beach 

opportunities to enhance recreational uses within this area and transfer fee ownership to the City. 

Project Status The project is in the early stages of development and discussions with the City of 

Newport Beach have been initiated and are on-going to determine if there is a mutual interest in 

providing additional recreational opportunities within the City. 

Environmental The project will be designed to minimize any environmental impacts; however, on-

going discussions with the City will determine whether the agency or the City will prepare the necessary 

environmental clearances. 

Construction Construction impacts will be determined upon completing the preliminary engineering for 

the project. 

Cost/Budget Fiscal Year 2016 costs are estimated at $100,000 for concept development and potential 

endowment funding. Costs for subsequent years will be determined based upon final project concept 

approval. 

Schedule Preliminary 

concept approval for the 

land transfer and bicycle 

trail is estimated for 

completion in Fiscal Year 

2016. Dependent upon 

discussions with the City, 

project initiation would 

occur in Fiscal Year 2017. 

32 

Potential Trail 



  

 

 

  

 

  

Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16 FY17 & Later Total

Environmental  $         -    $              -    $      100  TBD  TBD 

Design  TBD  TBD 

Construction             -                    -               -    TBD  TBD 

Const. Engineering Mgmt.             -                    -               -    TBD  TBD 

Contingency             -                    -               -    TBD  TBD 

Total  $         -    $              -    $      100  TBD  TBD 

In $1,000

Table 10 
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Signage Improvements 
SJHTCA Project No. 4 

Description This project provides updated messaging on the large overhead signage on the freeway and 
major arterial approaches to the toll road system. Also included are improved signage for ramp 
entrances, roadside signage, freeway-to-toll road transition signs and lane stenciling and changes to 
signage to simplify messaging related to our payment method for infrequent users (One-Time-Toll). 

Purpose and Need Supplemental signage along with refinements to existing signs are recommended in 
order to better communicate to drivers how to use the toll road system. The proposed changes 
incorporate the latest federal and state standards for use on toll facilities. 

Project Status The project is currently in the concept development phase with final design expected to 
be complete in the next fiscal year. Implementation of all signage improvements is expected to 
continue through FY2017. 

Environmental No environmental impacts foreseen. 

Design Customer research regarding sign messaging is currently underway and the results will be 
incorporated into the signage modifications. In December 2014, the Boards approved one-half of the 
estimated design costs for the signage work. The balance of the design costs will be brought before the 
Boards for approval following further review of the new signage concepts. 

Construction Impacts The signage replacement on the overhead facilities will require extensive lane 
and ramp closures throughout the toll road and freeway system. Major closures will be done at night 
and other off-peak travel times in order to minimize inconvenience to drivers. 

Cost/Budget A breakdown of costs is provided in Table 11. 

Schedule Preliminary concept development is anticipated to last through July 2015. The design work 
and Caltrans approval will follow with approval scheduled for September 2015. Minor sign work can be 
accomplished through the use of an on-call signage contractor, however it is anticipated that the major 
overhead signs would be done under a separate construction contract. This work will last through Fiscal 
Year 2017. 
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Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16

FY17 & 

Later Total

Customer Research  $          -    $          -    $         25  $          -    $         25 

Design              -                -             120             20           140 

Construction              -                -             300           300           600 

Construction Management              -                -               30             60             90 

Contingency and Miscellaneous              -                -               -               80             80 

Total  $          -    $          -    $       475  $       460  $       935 

In $1,000

Table 11 
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Toll Plaza Facility Improvements 
SJHTCA Project No. 5 

Description The project consists of two elements: 

1) A formal study is proposed to research possible uses for the toll booth and other toll plaza buildings 
throughout the system. The recommendations developed as part of this study will be brought before 
the Board for further action. 

2) Toll Booth removal – In order to minimize the initial costs of the All-Electronic Tolling conversion 
project, the majority of the toll booths on the system were left in place. It is proposed to remove the 
toll booths and related equipment and this will be done in a prioritized manner. 

Purpose and Need The implementation of All-Electronic Tolling has substantially changed the facilities 
usage throughout the toll road system.  

Project Status The project will be started in FY 2016 with scope definition. 

Environmental The environmental impacts of the proposed improvements will be evaluated in detail; 

however, they appear at this stage to be minimal. 

Design The design scope will follow further definition of the project. 

Construction There will be lane and ramp closures along with demolition related to the toll booth 

removal work. 

Cost/Budget Total Project Costs are estimated as shown in Table 12. 

Schedule The study will be developed and finalized in FY2016 along with toll booth removal at high 
priority locations.  
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Activity

 FY14 & 

Prior 

 FY15 

Actual 

Plus 

Projected 

Proposed 

FY16

FY17 & 

Later Total

Preliminary Study  $          -    $          -    $         59  $          -    $         59 

Toll Booth Removal Phase 1              -                -          1,036              -          1,036 

Toll Booth Removal Phase 2              -                -               -    TBD  TBD 

Toll Booth Removal Phase 3              -                -               -    TBD  TBD 

Total  $          -    $          -    $    1,095  $          -    $    1,095 

In $1,000

Table 12 
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SJHTCA Future Widening Projects 

Over the past two decades the Orange County toll roads have become an integral part of the regional 
transportation system. Customer surveys show that people depend on the toll roads for reliability in the 
travel time it takes to reach their destination. As regional travel demand grows and the freeway and 
arterial system become more congested, the toll road system can sometimes experience congestion as 
well. In order to preserve dependable travel times, occasionally system expansion projects become 
warranted. 

The transportation corridor system is designed to be expanded with additional lanes as traffic demand 
and volumes grow. Space is also provided within the median for either additional travel lanes and/or 
potential transit facilities as the County of Orange and surrounding communities mature. Since the 
corridors were originally planned there have been several changes to several key factors that influence 
travel demand. These factors include residential and non-residential development changes, toll rates 
that differ from those originally forecast, shifts in population and employment, changes to the arterial 
highway system and changes in commuter behavior.  

Several widening projects have taken place on the toll road system since the original project 
construction in the late 1990’s (see Completed Projects).  
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SJHTCA Future Interchanges 
Just as all lanes of the toll road system were not constructed along with the original project, several 
interchanges were also deferred during the original construction. The need for these deferred 
interchanges has changed over the years, for many of the same reasons affecting the widening projects. 
Major developer open space land dedications have reduced the need for some planned interchanges 
while new land uses have created demand for interchanges at previously unplanned locations. The 
following interchanges have been included in the long range plans for the toll road system and are 
included in the CIP. The timing for development of these interchanges will be evaluated annually as part 
of this document. As projects are advanced, they will be moved into the near- or mid-term categories. 

73 @ Glenwood/Pacific Park Drive Phases 2 & 3 
This interchange was deferred during the original construction of the 73 toll road. In 2003 the Agency, 
in partnership with OCTA and the County of Orange developed a partial interchange (ramps to and from 
the 73 to the north). The future Phase 2 of the interchange completes the interchange movements with 
ramps to and from 73 to the south. The future Phase 3 is an expansion/reconfiguration of the 
northbound on ramp from Glenwood and provides for more intersection and mainline capacity by 
braiding the northbound on-ramp with the El Toro off-ramp. The need for the future phases of this 
interchange will be evaluated annually during the CIP approval process. 

Figure 4 
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73 @ Jamboree Road 
Two of the ramps at the 73/Jamboree Road interchange were deferred during the original construction 
of the 73 toll road.  

Ramp JR-1 
This ramp is a northbound 73 off-ramp to Jamboree Road (intersection at Bristol Street North). 
The northbound 73 MacArthur Boulevard exit currently serves this movement with drivers 
turning left at Jamboree to access Bristol Street North. The current design requires removal of 
the existing northbound loop ramp from Jamboree to the 73. 

Ramp JR-5 
This ramp is a northbound on-ramp to the 73 from Jamboree Road. This ramp exits northbound 
Jamboree Road before San Diego Creek and is a flyover structure over San Diego Creek, Bayview 
Way, the Fletcher-Jones Mercedes-Benz dealership, Jamboree Road and State Route 73 before 
merging into the northbound mainline of the 73. 
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Completed Projects 

Since implementing the Capital Improvement Plan, fourteen projects have been completed. These 
projects were funded in the CIP budget each year during the design and construction phases. A brief 
discussion of the scope of each project is listed below. 

Completed Capital Projects 
(FY97 thru FY15) 

Table 13 

No. Title

Total Project 

Cost ($M)

1 241 Banderas Bridge Overcrossing  $                1.2 

2 Santa Margarita Parkway On-Ramp Widening  $              11.6 

3 Arroyo Trabuco Southbound Bridge Widening  $                8.5 

4 241 northbound widening  $              15.3 

5 Tomato Springs Toll Plaza Third AVI Lanes  $                3.1 

6 Landscaping Enhancements  $                5.0 

7 Toll Plaza Water & Wastewater  $                0.2 

8 133 Widening  $                5.4 

9 Windy Ridge FasTrak Lane Widening  $              10.6 

10 All-Electronic Tolling  $              11.6 

Total F/ETC  $              72.4 

1 73 @ Glenwood Interchange Phase I  $                8.5 

2 Landscaping Enhancements  $                2.3 

3 73 Northbound Roadway Widening  $              15.0 

4 All-Electronic Tolling  $                5.0 

Total SJHTC  $              30.9 

Total All Projects  $            103.3 

San Joaquin Hills Corridor

Foothill/Eastern Corridor



  

   

 
     

    
   

 
 

  
      

      
    
  

 
    

 
  

     
 

   
 

    
    

    
 

 
   

     
    

   
  

 
     

      
  

 
     

     
  

 
      

       
  

 
    

   
  

   
   

Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Completed Projects 

1. 241 Banderas Bridge Overcrossing. - This project provided a new overcrossing of the 241 Toll Road 
between Antonio Parkway and Santa Margarita Parkway. It was sponsored by the City of Rancho Santa 
Margarita to provide improved traffic circulation within the City. The F/ETCA contributed $1.22 million 
as its fair share of the project costs.  The project was completed and opened to traffic in October 2002. 

2. Santa Margarita Parkway On-Ramp Widening - The northbound on-ramp at this location previously 
narrowed to a single lane prior to merging into the mainline. This project added a second lane to the 
ramp to address high peak-hour traffic volumes, which also required widening the 1,500 foot long 
Arroyo Trabuco Creek Bridge. The bridge was widened to the Ultimate Corridor configuration at a total 
project cost of $11.57 million.  This project was completed in 2005. 

3. Arroyo Trabuco Southbound Bridge Widening. - In bidding Project No. 3 above, the contractor was 
asked to price a similar widening of the southbound traffic structure thereby allowing both northbound 
and southbound structures to be widened to their Ultimate Corridor width at the same time. This would 
allow only one disruption of the Arroyo Trabuco Creek below the bridge. The project was designed and 
constructed including the addition of a second exit lane to Santa Margarita Parkway at a total project 
cost of $8.52 million.   This project was completed in early 2005. 

4. 241 northbound widening – One additional mixed flow lane was constructed in the median of the 241 
northbound from Arroyo Trabuco Creek to Bake Parkway. This project included the widening of five 
twin northbound and southbound bridges to their Ultimate Corridor configuration. Construction was 
completed in late 2003 at a total project cost of $15.28 million. 

5. 241 Tomato Springs Toll Plaza Third FasTrak Lanes – These lanes were added to address increasing 
traffic volumes and FasTrak usage at this SR 241 location. Included was a reconfiguration of the lane 
delineation between the toll plaza and the adjacent SR 133 Interchange to encourage FasTrak as the 
predominant toll payment method. Construction was completed in the spring of 2004 at a total project 
cost of $3.11 million. 

6. Landscaping Enhancements – Two separate contracts were designed and constructed/installed on 
the 241 and 261 Corridors. These were completed at project costs totaling $5 million. Grant funds of 
$750,000 reduced the agency’s net cost by that amount.  Implementation was completed in 2004. 

7. Toll Plaza Water & Wastewater – Improvements to the toll plaza water and wastewater systems were 
completed at three mainline toll plazas on the 241, 261 and 133 Toll Roads, including one new 
connection to a public sewer.  These were completed in early 2002 at a cost of $223,000. 

8. 133 Widening – One mixed flow lane was added in each direction from I-5 to 241 along with median 
guard rail for most of the 2.5 mile project length. Construction was completed in the fall of 2005 at a 
project cost of $5.39 million. 

9. Windy Ridge FasTrak Lane Widening - The project added a third general purpose FasTrak lane in each 
direction within the 241 roadway median through the Windy Ridge Mainline Toll Plaza from south of the 
Southern California Edison (SCE) wildlife undercrossing to north of the Windy 
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Ridge wildlife 
undercrossing, a distance of 3.0 miles. Widening the southbound SCE bridge and the northbound Windy 
Ridge Wildlife bridge was also included in the project. The project was opened to traffic in October 2009. 



  

 
            

   
  

  
 

  

10. All-Electronic Tolling – In May 2014 the agencies ceased collecting cash on the system. This was a 
multi-year process that involved each of the departments within the TCA. All-Electronic Tolling provides 
for license plate tolling for those that do not have a toll road account. The work was done in 
conjunction with a pressing need to replace outdated tolling equipment throughout the system. 
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San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Completed Projects 

1. 73 @ Glenwood Interchange Phase I – This project included the design and construction of ramps to 
and from the north at Glenwood/Pacific Park Drive on the 73 Toll Road. Work was performed under a 
design-build contract with construction completed in April 2003 at a total project cost of $8.50 million. 
Just under $6.7 million was received by the San Joaquin Hills Agency in grant funding for the project. 

2. Landscaping Enhancements – A contract was completed to enhance the landscaping at interchanges 
along the SR 73, at a cost of $2.30 million. 

3. 73 Northbound Roadway Widening – This project added a fourth lane to the northbound mainline in 
two locations: 1) from the former lane drop north of Aliso Viejo Parkway to north of the Laguna Canyon 
Road entrance ramp, a distance of 2.4 miles, and 2) from the Catalina View Mainline Toll Plaza cash lane 
merge, to the MacArthur Blvd. exit, a distance of 3.3 miles. The project was opened to traffic in 
December 2009. 

4. All-Electronic Tolling – In May 2014 the agencies ceased collecting cash on the system. This was a 
multi-year process that involved each of the departments within the TCA. All-Electronic Tolling provides 
for license plate tolling for those that do not have a toll road account. The work was done in 
conjunction with a pressing need to replace outdated tolling equipment throughout the system. 
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